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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM"”) has been positioned as a market
designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the

securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Director(s)”) of Pegasus
Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders, BAIARE
On behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as AR AZEREZARATNRENBAT (SiiEA [AEH]) -

the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you the Group’s annual results ik [m B NIEZ2AEERE E2014F6A300 (FF
for the year ended 30 June 2014. EELR o

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14



Review

I am pleased to report that the Group has attained a satisfying result for
another year. For the year under review, profit attributable to owners
of the Company increased by 37.8% from the same period last year
to Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") 26.4 million. In addition to the growth
of existing businesses, the increase also reflected that Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited (“JDH"), an associate of the Group acquired during
the year, has positively contributed to the results of the Group. As the
Group had produced films of general scale during the year under review,
together with solid cost control, gross profit margin increased to 44.3%
from 33.9% for the same period last year.

In 2013, the film industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
has seen a very rapid pace of development with (i) total box office
receipts exceeding Renminbi (“RMB”) 21.0 billion, representing a
year-on-year rise of 27.5%; and (ii) total number of cinema admissions
increasing by 32.5% to 600 million. Total box office receipts for the first
half of 2014 amounted to RMB13.7 billion, representing a year-on-year
rise of 24.5%, clearly indicating that the PRC film market has entered a
golden phase of development.

To build upon these favourable factors, we seek to capture all
opportunities in the PRC film industry, which is our key market.
During the year under review, we have released three films, namely
“Baby Blues” (5£%), “Hello Babies” (;N#2=2%) and “Z Storm” (Z[
Z%), generating HK$104.4 million revenue for the Group. We expect
that we will continue to benefit from the favourable market condition
in the coming year. Currently, shooting of the Group’s three ongoing
films are all completed and are being arranged for release. As such, we
expect there will be an increase in the number of films to be released
in the coming year.

The Group has also expanded our business beyond the Asia market by
investing in “Inversion” (tentative name), a sci-fi movie intended to be
produced for global distribution through international cinemas in the
second half of 2016. The film has achieved important initial achievement
as it received considerable pre-sale amounting to approximately United
States Dollar (“US$") 40.0 million in the Cannes Film market this year.
The film is now at the end of the pre-production stage with shooting
scheduled to commence by April 2015 and official worldwide release
in the second half of 2016. We will continue to identify appropriate
film and television (“TV") program investment projects so as to further
expand our participation in the international film market and generate
additional revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

In order to further enhance the efficiency of our film business, the Group
has established its post-production arm by way of cooperation with a
well known post-production house in Hong Kong to participate in digital
media post-production operation with a view to forming an integrated
film production chain so as to achieve economies of scale and synergies.

In addition to film production, we believe that the distribution channel
business in the film industry also has significant growth potential and
our entrance into this segment of the industry will expand the revenue
base of the Group and by extension, generate higher returns for the
shareholders of the Company. During the year under review, the Group
successfully secured a ten-year lease for the cinema situated at Langham
Place. Langham Place is located in the prime area of Mongkok (a popular
shopping and entertainment district in Hong Kong). The operation period
of the cinema commenced in July 2014 and the cinema is currently
under renovation. It is scheduled to be officially opened in the fourth
quarter of 2014 under the name “Cinema City Langham Place”. We will
introduce an exclusive viewing technology from South Korea which will
bring an unprecedented new experience of film viewing to Hong Kong.
With the combination of the desirable locale and the offer of a new
film viewing experience, Cinema City Langham Place is an ideal jumping
platform for the Group’s future endeavours in the film distribution
business with Hong Kong cinema market as the first step. To capitalise
on our established brand in the PRC film market and its strong growth
momentum, our business will soon expand into the cinema market in
the PRC. We are negotiating cinema projects in prime locations and an
announcement will be made when necessary in this regard.

n Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Outlook

In 2010 the State Council (B7#PF) of the PRC issued a series of
guidelines for the film and cultural industries in order to give strong
support for the PRC’s film industry by way of macro policies. At the
end of the same year, it clearly stated the policy direction of developing
the cultural industry into a pillar industry of the national economy.
Since then, under this favourable environment, the PRC film industry
recorded rapid development. In particular, at the end of May 2014,
central government ministries and departments including the Ministry of
Finance (81 Et#6) and State Administration of Taxation (AR 44 ), in
conjunction with the State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio,
Film and Television (RZXR¥EHMETLLD) ("SAPPRFT”) issued the
Notice on Certain Economic Policies for the Support of the Development
of the Film Industry, which mainly provides for preferential tax policy
as well as financing supports and subsidies for the film industry. This
demonstrates the increasing support from the state towards the cultural
industry after the announcement of the related polices stated in the
“12th Five-Year Plan” by the PRC Government.

Over the years, the Group’s business in the PRC market has matured.
Through its full utilisation of the advantages offered by the Mainland
and the Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement to
develop the PRC film market, the Group has made sound progress.
Nevertheless, the overseas market (excluding Hong Kong, Macau and
Southeast Asia) accounted for 19.9% (2013: 10.1%) of total revenue
of the Group for the year under review, which indicates a large growth
potential for that market. While our primary focus remains to be the
PRC market, the Group also attaches great importance to the gradual
expansion of business in overseas markets. We intend to strengthen our
distribution network and deepen penetration in overseas markets so as
to gain further achievements by virtue of our efforts in developing our
reputable distribution channels and participating in the international

film “Inversion”.

To better reflect our niche in the industry and diversified operations,
we changed our Chinese company name to "RKEFMEX(LIEBRAER
~a]" effective from end of August 2014. We believe the new name
better reflects our corporate goals by providing the Company with a
clearer identity and corporate image in terms of the scope of our current
businesses and those to be pursued in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in films and TV series production,
distribution and licensing of film rights in Hong Kong, the PRC and South
East Asia through its established distribution channels. The Group has
been producing films and TV series in Chinese language with the PRC

as its major market.

During the year under review, the principal business activities of the
Group comprised (a) production of films and TV series; (b) distribution
and licensing of the Group's films to regions including Asia, Latin
America, the United States of America and Europe in addition to its
major markets of Hong Kong, the PRC and South East Asia; (c) offering
product placement and sponsorship opportunities in the Group's films
to derive advertising income; and (d) distribution of films and TV series
in the film library owned by the Group’s controlling shareholders (the
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BN AT

The Group’s business model and the principal

"Personal Library”).
business activities during the year under review remain the same as
those disclosed in the Company's prospectus dated 9 October 2012
(the "Prospectus”) and the previous annual report of 2013. In addition
to the current business activities, the Group’s film exhibition and post-

production businesses will be launched in the following financial year.

During the year under review, the Group generated revenue by licensing
films it produced to co-producers and distributors in the PRC as well as
film distributors and licencees in Hong Kong and overseas. The Group
also derived advertising income by offering product placement and
sponsorship opportunities in its films. In addition, the Group recognised
income from commission received for distributing films and TV series in
the Personal Library.

(OB Pecgasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14

B ARATR2012F10A98 TR B =R ([
BREFR]) R2013F E—FEFRATEESE - REBE
EEEIN - REBEN T — B EREEH# HE & R
B HARUVEZE RS -

REBEFER  AEBERTEBS S, B RETHIN
REBRAINEZRITH RERITERERFA TR
AN SR B T SL(E 82 /0 3 1T A 2 P 5T A 1T R AR AR o
AEETBBRNEEXTREBAXESREDKS

EEBRERA - bt REERBEITLABRFHESD
VEF RERBI TN EBSEREA o



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group released three films, namely “Baby Blues” (38%2), “Hello
Babies” (/Nf&= %) and “Z Storm” (Z/& %), during the year ended 30
June 2014. In the preceding year, three films, namely “Love is... Pyjamas”
(5 AIATKAR), “Hotel Deluxe” (B £B/E) and “Saving General Yang”
(BRUBKE), were released. During the year under review, the Group
invested in several PRC TV drama and animations programme produced
for distribution and broadcasting in the PRC and successfully procured
a ten-year lease for the cinema situated in Langham Place commencing
from July 2014 for development of the Group’s film distribution business
to include exhibition. In addition, the Group completed the acquisition
of 40% equity interests in JDH on 22 November 2013 whereby JDH
and its subsidiaries (the “JDH Group”) are principally engaged in comic
publication. The JDH Group also owns the intellectual property rights of
a database of comic stories and heroes that are suitable for reproduction
in films and TV programme as well as for the development into online
and mobile games. This associate had positively contributed to the
Group’s results during the year under review.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the reports published during the
year under review, due to the limited number of films distributed by the
Group, the scale, schedule of release and the result of one film could
have significant impact on the Group’s results. Given the distinctive
business model of the Group, the Group’s quarterly and interim financial
results may not be indicative of the Group’s financial results of a full
year and the Group’s financial performance would fluctuate from period
to period.

The financial position and liquidity of the Group remain solid and healthy
and there is no material adverse change in the operations of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE LA

Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue and gross profit of the Group were approximately HK$134.8
million and HK$59.7 million respectively for the year ended 30 June
2014, representing decreases of approximately HK$57.8 million or
30.0% and HK$5.6 million or 8.5% respectively compared to the
previous financial year. This was mainly due to the fact that all the films
released during the year under review were of general-scale, whilst
during the corresponding period in 2013, the group had released a
large-scale film namely “Saving General Yang” (£ ZI5 5K #). This film
alone accounted for approximately 64.2% of the total revenue for the
corresponding period in 2013. Moreover, all the films released during
the year under review are wholly-owned by the Group, whilst one of the
films released during the corresponding period in 2013, namely “Love
is... Pyjamas” (% AR07AR), is jointly controlled by the Group and the
PRC co-producer. Under such arrangement, revenue relating to “Love
is... Pyjamas” (55 ARAZKAR) was recognised based on the income and
expenses derived in respect of the Group’s share of the distribution
rights. Due to the above, the Group recorded a decrease of revenue
of approximately HK$63.4 million. Meanwhile, revenue from film
advertising and sponsorship attributable to the Group increased by more
than 10 times to approximately HK$5.2 million.

Gross profit margin for the year ended 30 June 2014 was approximately
44.3%, which showed a significant increase from that of approximately
33.9% for the previous financial year. This was mainly due to the Group
production of more general-scale films during the year under review as
opposed to large-scale films. Due to the relatively large costs involved,
larger scale production inherently has a lower gross profit margin.

Other Income and Gain

Other income and gain was approximately HK$3.5 million for the
year ended 30 June 2014, representing an increase of approximately
HK$2.5 million or 262.6% compared to the previous financial year.
This was mainly due to the investment income from investments in film/
drama production of certain PRC TV drama and animations programme
distributed by independent PRC production houses of approximately
HK$2.3 million recorded for the year ended 30 June 2014, whilst no
such income was recognised in the previous financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately HK$6.8
million, representing a decrease of about 31.0% from approximately
HK$21.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2013 to approximately
HK$15.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2014. This was mainly
because additional costs on advertising and promotion events were
incurred relating to the release of the large-scale film in the previous
financial year, whilst no such costs were recorded for the year ended 30
June 2014 as all of the films released were of general-scale.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$5.1 million
or 30.3% from approximately HK$17.0 million for the year ended
30 June 2013 to approximately HK$22.1 million for the year ended
30 June 2014. This was mainly due to the increase of the total staff
costs by approximately HK$2.2 million as a result of (a) a change of
arrangement to the directors’ remuneration structure in respect of the
listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the "Listing”), as disclosed in the Prospectus; (b) the average number
of employees increasing from 27 for the year ended 30 June 2013 to
29 for the year ended 30 June 2014; and (c) a general increase of the
overall remuneration of employee by approximately 5%. Moreover,
the expansion of company scale and corporate image development
also contributed to increases in administrative expenses, including
approximately HK$2.4 million in relation to corporate promotion and
marketing expenses as well as other professional fees paid to lawyers and
other professional parties for providing professional services for several
corporate actions during the year under review.

Share of Results of an Associate

During the year under review, the Group completed the acquisition
of 40% of the equity interest of JDH on 22 November 2013. Since
23 November 2013, the operation of the JDH Group had contributed
approximately HK$4.7 million to the Group, which were generated by
the comics publication and licensing of its database of comic stories
and comics heroes for film and TV series development as well as related
merchandising products.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15 November
2013, the requirement of net profits guaranteed by the vendor of this
acquisition as stipulated to the purchase agreement has been fulfilled.
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ERE R

Other Expenses

Other expenses represented the professional fees and expenses directly
relating to the Listing during the previous financial year, whilst no such
expenses were recorded during the year under review.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense of the Group during the year ended 30 June
2014 amounted to approximately HK$4.3 million (2013: HK$4.5 million)
at the effective tax rate, excluding the share of results of an associate
which was net of tax, of 16.5% (2013: 19.0%). The effective tax rate
during the year under review was mainly attributed by the Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit of the
Group for the year under review, whilst the income tax expense of the
Group during the previous financial year was adjusted by the non-tax-
deductible nature of certain expenses directly relating to the Listing and
overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax provided in prior years.

Profit for the Year under Review

The Group's profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$26.4 million (2013: HK$19.1 million). The increase
of profit for the year under review compared to the previous financial
year was primarily a result of the increase in other income and gain and
share of results of an associate and decrease in selling and distribution
and other expenses outweighed the decrease in gross profit and increase
in administrative expenses as aforementioned.
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Outlook

During the year under review, the Group had continued to carry out its
business plan as disclosed in the Prospectus. The Group had achieved
its business to another milestone following the Listing by taking certain
important steps to expand its business from the scope of film production
and distribution into a diversified cultural business.

Having established a presence in the PRC film market, the Group has
been well positioned as a producer of quality co-productions. The Group
is confident in the PRC cultural industry’s outlook which is encouraging
for industry participants in view of the increasing support from the PRC
Government. In order to capture the opportunities offered by the rapid
development of the PRC cultural market, the Group will continue to
expand its production capacities. Up to the date of this report, the Group
has completed production of one film, which is being scheduled for
screening and has two films in the post-production stage as well as a film
currently in shooting stage. All of these films are expected to be released
in the following financial year. Currently, scripts of two additional films
are awaiting script approvals from the SAPPRFT. The Group is currently
in the process of identifying PRC co-producers and production will start
in the following financial year.

As aforementioned, the JDH Group had positively contributed to
the results of the Group. Apart from its principal business in comics
publication, its business will expand so as to make use of its valuable
database of comic stories and comics heroes to develop films and TV
series as well as the aspect of mobile and online game.

Based on the current status of the renovation work, Cinema City
Langham Place, which will be the Group's flagship cinema in Hong
Kong, is expected to commence operations in the fourth quarter of
2014. According to the lease agreement for Cinema City Langham Place,
a rent-free period for the first four months of approximately HK$19.3
million was offered as compensation for the renovation period during
which the cinema is not in operation. In light of the accounting policy
adopted by the Group under the applicable accounting standard, such
incentive provided by the landlord is treated as a uniform reduction of
rental expenses (that is, on a straight-line basis over the lease term).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE LA

With the lease term having commenced on 23 July 2014, rental expenses
will be immediately recognised under the abovementioned accounting
treatment. In the meantime, revenue will only be generated once the
cinema commence operation in the fourth quarter of 2014 (expected
date). As such, it is expected the Group's first quarterly and interim
as well as a full financial results of the film exhibition business of the
following financial year may be adversely affected. The Group intends
to expand its cinema business in Hong Kong and the PRC by virtue of
its established brand in the PRC.

In September 2014, the Group established its post-production arm
by way of cooperation with a post-production house in Hong Kong
to participate in digital media post-production business. The post-
production business is currently being set up. The Group believes the
in-house post-production arm will enable the Group to better monitor
and control its production costs, time and quality of its films which
will benefit the Group in terms of improved production efficiency, cost
effectiveness as well as providing the flexibility of fine tuning our films.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on its core as well
as new businesses to strengthen the integration of its film related
businesses and utilise its available resources to capture the opportunities
offered by the golden phase of the PRC cultural industry. The Group will
also continue to explore business opportunities associated with its core
business so as to strengthen its revenue base and maximise the return
to the shareholders and the value of the Company.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately HK$47.8 million (30 June 2013: HK$60.0 million), which

are denominated mainly in HK$, US$ and RMB.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any interest-bearing loans
and shareholders’ loans (2013: NIL).

(lGW Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group had unutilised credit facilities totalling HK$30.0 million as at
both 30 June 2013 and 2014. The Group has maintained this general
banking facility amounted to HK$30.0 million for flexibility. Up to the
date of this report, the Group has maintained an additional new general
banking facility amounted to HK$5.0 million for flexibility.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately HK$88.1 million (30 June 2013: HK$31.9 million), net
current assets of approximately HK$203.2 million (30 June 2013:
HK$162.0 million) and net assets of approximately HK$291.3 million
(30 June 2013: HK$193.9 million). The current ratio of the Group,
representing the ratio of current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 10.9 as at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: 6.8).

During the year under review, the Group funded its liquidity by the net
proceeds from the Listing and placement of new shares and warrants of
the Company and resources generated internally. The Group’s financial
resources are sufficient to support its business and operations. The
Group would also consider other financing activities when appropriate
business opportunities arise under favourable market conditions.

In September 2014, the Group completed a placing of 50,000,000 new
shares at a price of HK$1.26 per share. The gross proceeds and net
proceeds from the placing were HK$63.0 million and approximately
HK$60.0 million respectively which will be used to strengthen the future
film development and general working capital of the Group.

Employee Information

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had 29 employees (30 June 2013:
27). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, amounted to
approximately HK$10.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013:
HK$9.2 million, including script writing fee paid to a Director).

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and
benefits package to all its employees. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Group has also adopted other employee benefits
including a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong, as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and
has participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed
by the relevant local governments for its employees in the PRC.
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Charge on Assets

The Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$30.1 million and
HK$30.2 million as at 30 June 2013 and 2014 respectively, were pledged
to secure a general banking facility of HK$30.0 million available to the
Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group's business operations were conducted mainly in Hong Kong
with transactions principally denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB. The
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated mainly in HK$, US$ and
RMB. Apart from HK$, which is pegged to US$, any significant exchange
rate fluctuations of HK$ against RMB may have a financial impact to the
Group. During the year under review, there was no significant fluctuation

in the exchange rates of these currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its statement of financial
position exposure during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Capital commitment

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
there were no other capital commitment for the Group as at 30 June
2013 and 2014.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2013 and 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

(B Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Comparison between Business Plan and Actual
Business Progress

The following is a comparison between the Group’s business plan as
set out in the Prospectus and the actual business progress for the year
ended 30 June 2014.

Business plan for the year ended 30 June 2014
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERMABE2014F6 A30H L FEREKFE

Expansion of our film production business:

PREMNEZRIERS

We will continue to explore more territories and channels for
distributing and licensing our films.

B EEARRMEXN BT RELETRFERATIRRESEERE
.

We will continue to monitor the market trends of the film industry
in Hong Kong and the PRC and will release six films with genres
according to the prevailing market trends and our observation on
audiences’ preference.
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Actual business progress up to 30 June 2014

BE201456 A30BMBERERER

The Group increased its territory of customers of
the existing distributing and licensing platform, new
customers includes a number of customers located in

European countries and Latin America.
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Referring to the modified business plan as disclosed
in the Company’s annual report 2012/13 dated
23 September 2013 (“2013 Annual Report”) and
interim report 2013/14 dated 12 February 2014
(2014 Interim Report”), the Group will release four
films during the year ended 30 June 2014. “Baby
Blues” (i ), "Hello Babies” (<48 = %) and “Z
Storm” (ZRE.£) have been released during the year
ended 30 June 2014. Production of the remaining
drama film has been completed and is scheduling
for release which is currently expected to be the first
half of the following financial year.
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We will invest in equipment for post-production, including digital film
editing and processing and accordingly recruiting more staff.

W\
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The business plan and intended use of proceeds from the Listing as
disclosed in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the
Prospectus, while the proceeds were applied in accordance with the
actual development of the market.

From the date of the Listing to 30 June 2014, the net proceeds from the
Listing had been applied as follows:

In September 2014, the Group has established its
post-production arm by way of cooperation with a
well known post-production house in Hong Kong to
participate in digital media post-production business.
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Actual use of
Total use of proceeds from

proceeds as  the date of the

described in the Listing to

Prospectus 30 June 2014
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HK$' million HK$' million

BEEER BEAET

Expansion of film production business WEEEREER 58.4 51.5
Invest in equipment for post-production 1 E 1B BARERE 9.8 -
Staff recruitment REST 2.8 1.5
General working capital —MREEES 2.5 2.5
Total A& 73.5 55.5

The unutilised proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts
located in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors regularly evaluates the Group’s business objective and
may change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to ascertain the business growth of the Group. The Group intended to
release four films for the year ended 30 June 2014 of which one film
and three films will be released in the first and second half of the year
ended 30 June 2014 under the modified business plan as disclosed in
the 2013 Annual Report and 2014 Interim Report.

With the significant expansion of domestic films development in the PRC,
initial approval for the film production by SAPPRFT has extended beyond
expectation. As such, the main casts and production crew availability
has also been affected by this unexpected delay in approval schedules.
The Directors had evaluated the Group's business plan and believed that
there will be six films to be released during the year ending 30 June 2015
of which two films and four films will be released in the first and second
half of the year ending 30 June 2015 respectively. Up to the date of this
report, out of the eleven films that were intended for release during the
two years ended 30 June 2013 and 2014 under the business plan stated
in the Prospectus, six films have been released with four films expected
to be released during the year ending 30 June 2015 and the remaining
film scheduled to be released for the year ending 30 June 2016. The
Group will keep abreast of the latest trends and development of the film
industry and continue to provide updates on the Group’s business plan.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors considered that no modification
of the use of proceeds described in the Prospectus was required.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming, aged 68, was appointed as a Director on 8 March
2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director and appointed as
the chairman of the Board on 5 October 2012. Mr. Wong is responsible
for the strategic planning of the Group. He is an artist and filmmaker
in Hong Kong, formed Cinema City Company Limited and Cinema City
(Film Production) Company Limited, both of which are film production
companies, in 1980s. In 1990, Mr. Wong founded Mandarin Films
Limited. Mr. Wong was an executive director of Cheung Wo International
Holdings Limited, formerly known as China Mandarin Holdings Limited
("Cheung Wo") (Stock Code: 0009), shares of which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 21 August 2001 to 18 August
2009. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in the film industry
for each of the roles as executive producer, script writer and artist and
over 25 years of experience as film director. He has participated in
more than 100 films throughout his career. He has been the chairman
of the Movie Producers and Distribution Association since 1997. He
has been appointed as a member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Cultural
Co-operation Committee under Hong Kong-Taiwan Economic and
Cultural Cooperation and Promotion Council for a term of two years
from 1 August 2013 to 31 October 2015. He was a member of the
Hong Kong Film Development Council from April 2011 to March 2013.
Mr. Wong is the father of Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina (“Ms. Alvina
Wong") and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond (“Mr. Edmond Wong"), both
executive Directors of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina, aged 38, was appointed as a Director
on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
on 5 October 2012. Ms. Alvina Wong is responsible for the sales
and distribution functions of the Group and has around 12 years of
experience in the film industry, including assessing market reception
of proposed films, providing promotional services for films and liaising
with film distributors and licencees. Ms. Alvina Wong was an executive
director of Cheung Wo from 1 September 2003 to 1 April 2009. Ms.
Alvina Wong graduated from the University of Toronto with a bachelor’s
degree in Arts in June 1998. Ms. Alvina Wong is the daughter of Mr.
Wong Pak Ming (“Mr. Wong") and the sister of Mr. Edmond Wong,
both executive Directors of the Company.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond, aged 35, was appointed as a Director
on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
5 October 2012. Mr. Edmond Wong is responsible for overseeing film
production of our Group. He has around 10 years of experience in the
film industry as script writer and was an executive director of Cheung Wo
from 3 June 2008 to 13 February 2009. Mr. Edmond Wong graduated
from McMaster University in Canada with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in
June 2002. Mr. Edmond Wong is the son of Mr. Wong and the brother
of Ms. Alvina Wong, both executive Directors of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lam graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Management in 1991. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 15 years of
experience in professional audit and extensive experience in investor
relations management, auditing, mergers and acquisitions and overseas
financing. Since May 2012, he has been an executive director, company
secretary and an authorised representative of Fantasia Holdings Group
Co., Limited (stock code: 1777), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Since June 2014, he has been a non-executive
director of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1778),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was company secretary and qualified accountant of Greentown China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3900), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from May 2006 to October 2008. Mr.
Lam was an executive director of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited
(stock code: 3883), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from September 2009 to May 2012, and was company
secretary of such company from December 2008 to May 2012. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of Sheng Yuan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 851), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from November 2010 to February 2014 (resigned with
effective on 1 March 2014).

EELENE IR ERE

BEFEKXE 355 R2012F3R15BEEZ T AE
E - WAR2012F10ASHAERITES - EFELE
BEEBAEEMNERRE - FREXEEALNI0F
wEIAEE - WH2008F6 A3H £200942 A 13H HAfA
BEERMAITES - FFEIEEN2002F6AEER
MEXERFHFERE  WHBXEELEM - FT
BRERELAEMNAFREZTHEE (MAHAE
NAFITEE) o

BUFHTES

MEEE LA - 455% 0 MN2012F10ASEEEF ABL
FEHITEF - MALEMINFEEREBP IS
TEHSTIHERELTBM - MAERBEEEHMAE
CENEBBTARETMASEREE - MAELER
EXERESBEADISTFER  UEREEBRES
B E% - A RRBEUREIINRE SRR EZE
B o B20126F5 A AR - B —EEERBERAMER L
TMREEFEREEARA A (RORE - 1777)
TEE - RRAIWEREENREK - B2014F6 A BAZK -
B—EHETRBXAER EMORETEREEEGR
2R (MRS 1778) IEFNITEF - 20065F58 &
2008F 108 + PRI A EE RO B 22 AT E AR £ Th RO4R 3
BERAR AR (BRHMASE : 3900) RAIWEREE
EEEHAD o MR AR 200999 A E201245 AR E(T
FBE 22 BT FE AR T A R B ot E R AR 1D B PR A &)
(AR K55 : 3883) MITEH - 72008512 HE2012
FSAMMERZARMRQRME - MIELER2010F
118 Z=2014424 (FA2014F3H18 & B (1) & T
B ZZFT R BT A BRRIER A R A A (AR D AR
851) BYUIEHAITESE -

REZECERAR AT ~ 2013/14 35 [AE)



Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk, aged 40, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lo has over 15 years of
experience in business management in a private company which trades
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Tang is a member of
the Royal Institute of British Architects and a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (TEIA RBUAHEE
##%). Mr. Tang is a director of several private companies engaged in the
business including property investment and investment holding. Mr. Tang
was an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of Cheung Wo from 1 September 2001 to 31 August 2003
and from 1 December 2005 to 29 May 2008 respectively.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Chi Ming, aged 39, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company responsible for assisting the Directors in
overseeing finance and accounting, internal control, investor relations,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance and regulatory
compliance. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011. Mr. Chan
graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration (Accounting) in December 2000.
Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 14 years of accounting and
auditing experience accumulated from working for various international
accounting firms and a main board listed company in Hong Kong.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Chan Yuen Yee, aged 53, is the administration manager responsible
for the overall administrative function and assisting in production
contracts management of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in
October 2009. She obtained a diploma in Management Studies awarded
jointly by Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association in September 1997. Prior to joining the Group in 2009, she
had over 15 years of working experience in administration management
in a film production and distribution company, where she was mainly
responsible for human resources management and office administration.

Ms. Qian Gao Gao, aged 53, is the deputy general manager of dt =K
BEE 2R b B R A F)("Beijing Pegasus”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, responsible for overseeing the operation of
Beijing Pegasus and assisting in all the Group’s business activities in the
PRC. Ms. Qian joined the Group in January 2012. Ms. Qian graduated
from Beijing Institute of Economy (3t 4 £F7) and obtained a degree
of Industrial Statistics under the Department of Industry and Economy
Administration (LA EEIE R T EFHETE ) in September 1984. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Qian had over 29 years of experience in the
film industry including 8 years in the SAPPRFT where she was mainly
responsible for reviewing the application for film production and
participating in film subsidisation works; and over 20 years in various
film production and distribution companies in the PRC, where she was
mainly responsible for assisting the parent company in Hong Kong on
its investment in the PRC domestic films and submitting application for
film productions including films under the co-production arrangement
in the PRC, redevelopment works for cinemas in the PRC and identifying
film investors.
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2014.

Change of Company Name

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2014 and the approval from
the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 8 July 2014, the
Company's dual foreign name was changed from " X BREIER B R A
A" to "REFRXLERBRAF".

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 59 to 135 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).

Segment Information

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years as extracted from the combined
and consolidated financial statements in the Prospectus, 2013 Annual
Report and this annual report, respectively are set out on page 136 of
this annual report.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Altus Capital Limited
(the "Compliance Adviser”), except for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and the Compliance Adviser dated
5 October 2012 effective on 31 October 2012, the date of the Listing,
neither the Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or associates
had any interests in relation to the Company as at 30 June 2014 which
is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group

are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
Bank Borrowing

The Group did not have bank borrowings as at 30 June 2014.
Interest Capitalised

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 30
June 2014.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 30 June 2014 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2014 are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 June 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to approximately HK$232,281,000 (2013: HK$164,146,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 30 June 2014.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 30 June 2014, income received from the top
five customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 68.9% (2013:
73.5%) of the Group’s revenue. During the same period, revenue
received from the single largest customer accounted for approximately
37.4% (2013: 49.4%) of the Group's revenue.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the fees paid/payable to the top
five suppliers in aggregate constituted approximately 12.3% (2013:
16.7%) of the Group’s total fees paid/payable to the suppliers. During
the same period, fees paid/payable to the largest supplier constituted
approximately 3.0% (2013: 4.7 %) of the Group's total fees paid/payable

to the suppliers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the share capital of the Company) has any interest in any of the top
five customers and suppliers.

Emoluments Policy

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) after
considering the factors such as the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and

experience of the individual employee.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Details of the Scheme is set out in the following section
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report. The Group
has also adopted other employee benefit including a provident
fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong, as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and has participated in
employee pension schemes organised and governed by the relevant local
governments for its employees in the PRC.

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five highest paid

individuals of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The Scheme has been approved by the then
sole shareholder on 5 October 2012. No share options were granted,
exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme during the
year ended 30 June 2014 and there were no outstanding share options
under the Scheme as at 30 June 2014.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

By virtue of Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the

Group are disclosed in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Agreements

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being
all the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31
October 2012 renewable automatically until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter. To
demonstrate their commitment towards the Group, each of the executive
Directors has undertaken not to resign or terminate their service
contracts during the initial fixed term of three years commencing from
31 October 2012, the date of the Listing.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all our independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 5 October 2012.
Each letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing on the
date of the letter of appointment and shall continue thereafter subject
to a maximum of three years unless terminated by either party giving at

least one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed to
enter into a service contract/letter of appointment with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation)).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all three independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Details of Directors’ interest in contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business are set out in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report and note 34 “Related party
disclosures” to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance
to which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or
at the end of the year ended 30 June 2014.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report of which certain Directors engaged in
film-related businesses, none of the Directors or the controlling shareholders
of the Company or their respective associates as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules has any interest in any business which competes or may compete with
the business of the Group during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

On 5 October 2012, Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong, Mr. Edmond Wong
and Honour Grace Limited (“Honour Grace”) (collectively referred as to
the “Controlling Shareholders”), have given an irrevocable non-compete
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the
Group pursuant to which each of them irrevocably, unconditionally,
jointly and severally undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly
or indirectly, carry on, invest in or be engaged in any business which
would or might compete with the business of the Group. Details of the
Non-competition Undertaking have been set out in the section headed
"Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Non-competition Undertaking has become effective from 31 October
2012, the date of the Listing.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-competition Undertaking for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the
Non-competition Undertaking and the Non-competition Undertaking
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

Contracts of Significance
Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between

the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and
its Associated Corporations

As at 30 June 2014, the interests of Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Mr. Wong Company Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 Long 62.50%
corporation (Note 1)

=L EN/NS) PSR A B R o 300,000,000 4FE 62.50%
(M$5E1)

Company Beneficial owner 4,180,000 Long 0.87%

NN EmEAA 4,180,000 & 0.87%

304,180,000 63.37% (Note 2)

304,180,000 63.37% (Ff3t2)

Honour Grace Beneficial owner 9 shares of Long 60.00% (Note 2)
US$1.00 each

R BEmBEBA ofRAfn (Fhx A 60.00% (Ki5E2)
E{E1.00%7T)

Note 1: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share
capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20%
by Mr. Edmond Wong and 20% by Ms. Alvina Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour Grace.

Note 2: Subsequent to 30 June 2014, 50,000,000 new shares of the Company had been
placed on 12 September 2014 at HK$1.26 per share and 1,000,000 new shares
of the Company had been issued pursuant to the subscription rights attaching
to the warrants of the Company on 16 September 2014 at HK$0.93 per share,
therefore, the percentage of the Company’s share capital held by Mr. Wong
and Honour Grace were 57.28% and 56.50% respectively as at the date of
this report. Further details of the placing arrangement have been set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 August 2014 and 12 September 2014.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 30 June 2014, the interest of the persons, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of Directors or chief executive of
the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Number of shares  Position (Note 3)

HERARE BT

RAT DL

RERER EEME BRHOBE = (PFEE3)

Honour Grace Beneficial owner 300,000,000  Long 62.50%

KR BEmfEiB A 300,000,000 #fE 62.50%

Mr. Wong Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 Long 62.50%
corporation (Note 1)

"L AR EE S 300,000,000 & 62.50%
(BFFEET)

Beneficial owner 4,180,000 Long 0.87%

EmEEA 4,180,000 A& 0.87%

304,180,000 63.37%

Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia (Note 2) Deemed interest 304,180,000 Long 63.37%

fR3igt (fsE2) WARRERER 304,180,000 & 63.37%

Note 1: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share MEE1: ZEWRDUNPLENEEERL  HE2HEBTRAHEL

capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20%
by Mr. Edmond Wong and 20% by Ms. Alvina Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour Grace.

Note 2: Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia, spouse of Mr. Wong, is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in all the shares in which Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested.

Note 3: Subsequent to 30 June 2014, 50,000,000 new shares of the Company had
been placed on 12 September 2014 at HK$1.26 per share and 1,000,000 new
shares of the Company had been issued pursuant to the subscription rights
attaching to the warrants of the Company on 16 September 2014 at HK$0.93
per share, therefore, the percentage of the Company’s share capital held by
Honour Grace, Mr. Wong and Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia were 56.50%, 57.28%
and 57.28% respectively as at the date of this report. Further details of the
placing arrangement have been set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 25 August 2014 and 12 September 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the
Company, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option Scheme”
and “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above, at no time during the year ended 30
June 2014 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO
or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to 56 of this annual report.

Related Party Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended
30 June 2014 are set out in note 34 “Related party disclosures” to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Prior to the Listing, the Group entered into a number of transactions
with certain entities which have become connected persons (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company upon the Listing. Following
the Listing, these transactions have continued in the ordinary and usual
course of business and thereby have become continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules, details of
which are set out below.
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Under the GEM Listing Rules, these continuing connected transactions
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements and exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements. As these continuing connected transactions were entered
into prior to the date of the Listing and details of which have been
fully disclosed in the Prospectus, the Directors consider that compliance
with the announcement requirements in respect of these continuing
connected transactions would be unduly burdensome, impractical and
would add additional administrative costs to the Company. Accordingly,
the Company has, pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, applied to the
Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver
from strict compliance with the announcement requirements relating to
these continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
In addition, the Directors confirm that the Company has complied and
will continue to comply with the applicable provisions under the GEM
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Group conducted
during the year ended 30 June 2014 are as follows:

(A) Income received

On 5 October 2012, the Group entered into a master distribution
agreement (the “Master Distribution Agreement”) with PM
Motion Pictures Limited, pursuant to which PM Motion Pictures
Limited engaged the Group as its exclusive agent for the
distribution of films and TV series in the film library owned by
PM Motion Pictures Limited. The Group is entitled to receive
commission of 25% on the gross licence fee received from the
relevant films and TV series by PM Motion Pictures Limited.
Such rate may be adjusted with reference to market rate which
is mutually agreed by both parties. The Master Distribution
Agreement has a term from 31 October 2012, the date of the
Listing, to 30 June 2015.

PM Motion Pictures Limited is a company indirectly owned by Mr.
Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong in equal shares,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any transaction between the Group and
PM Motion Pictures Limited constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company.
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Details of the transactions under the Master Distribution FITHEREB TR SNFEDT

Agreement are as follows:

Transaction
amount during Annual cap for
the year ended the year ended

Name of connected party BIEALHMBE Nature of transaction REME 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
BZ2014% BZ20145
6A30HILFE 6H30HILFEMN
RELH FELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
PM Motion Pictures Limited XFEZHH  Income received/receivable  RETFRERE 2,747 3,000
BRAT for provision of films BITIREH
and TV series distribution Bl EBIRA
services
(B)  Expenses paid (B) EBENEAHR
Pure Project Limited entered into a lease agreement (as 1. Pure Project Limited’201141081H

supplemented by an agreement dated 5 October 2012)
(the “Lease Agreement”) with the Group on 1 October
2011 in respect of a property located in Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong, which the Group uses as its Hong Kong
office, for a term from 1 October 2011 to 30 June 2015
at a monthly rental of HK$30,000 for the period from
1 October 2011 to 30 September 2013 and HK$40,000
for the period from 1 October 2013 to 30 June 2015
(exclusive of rates, utility charges and management fees).

Pure Project Limited is a company owned as to 99.99%
by Mr. Wong as to 0.01% by Ms. Wong Kit Fong, sister
of Mr. Wong, and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any
transaction between the Group and Pure Project Limited
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.
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On 5 October 2012, the Group entered into a master
film advertising agreement (the “Master Film Advertising
Agreement”) with Chili Advertising & Promotions Limited
("Chili"), pursuant to which Chili would provide film
advertising and promotion services to the Group. The
fees will be determined on an arm’s length basis based
on the prevailing market rates or at rates similar to those
offered by Chili to independent third parties. The Master
Film Advertising Agreement has an initial term from 31
October 2012, the date of the Listing, to 30 June 2015.

Chili is a company wholly owned by Ms. Wong Kit Fong,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any transaction
between the Group and Chili constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company.

On 5 October 2012, the Group entered into a master
film processing agreement (the “Master Film Processing
Agreement”) with Pegasus Laboratory (International)
Limited (“Pegasus Laboratory”), pursuant to which
Pegasus Laboratory would provide the Group with film
processing services. The fees will be determined on an
arm’s length basis based on the prevailing market rates
or at rates similar to those offered by Pegasus Laboratory
to independent third parties. The Master Film Processing
Agreement has an initial term from 31 October 2012, the
date of the Listing, to 30 June 2015.

Pegasus Laboratory is a company indirectly owned by
Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong
in equal shares, and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any
transaction between the Group and Pegasus Laboratory
constitutes a connected transaction.
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On 5 October 2012, each of KE#EEHE L (ILF)H
FR 2 &) (in English, for identification purpose only, Pegasus
Ying Lian Motion Pictures Culture (Beijing) Company
Limited) (“Pegasus Ying Lian”) and #MKXBFHE XL
ABRAF (in English, for identification purpose only,
Hangzhou Pegasus Motion Pictures Culture Company
Limited) (“Hangzhou Pegasus”) entered into an agency
agreement (collectively, the “Agency Agreements”) with
the Group in respect of its services of assisting the Group
to obtain initial project approval, when necessary.

Pegasus Ying Lian and Hangzhou Pegasus have been
deemed as connected persons under the GEM Listing
Rules as both companies were set up with capital
provided by Mr. Wong to the beneficial owners of these
two companies in the form of non-interest bearing loans.
As obtaining initial project approval in the PRC can only
be conducted by PRC domestic companies, the Group
has engaged Pegasus Ying Lian and Hangzhou Pegasus,
both being domestic companies, to obtain initial project
approval from the SAPPRFT so as to retain the flexibility
in choosing the PRC co-producers and to expedite the
process of approval of selected co-production projects.
On 5 May 2014, a declaration of trust was entered into
between the then beneficial owner of Pegasus Ying Lian
and Mr. Wong, pursuant to which the then beneficial
owner acknowledged and confirmed that she would be
holding the entire equity interests in Pegasus Ying Lian
in trust for Mr. Wong with effective from the date of
the declaration of trust. Thereafter, Pegasus Ying Lian
has become beneficially owned by Mr. Wong. As Mr.
Wong is a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules, any transaction between the Group
and Pegasus Ying Lian remains to constitute a connected
transaction of the Company.
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The transactions contemplated under each of the Lease Agreement,
the Master Film Advertising Agreement, the Master Film Processing
Agreement, and the Agency Agreements (collectively, the “Aggregated
Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions”) constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. In
addition, pursuant to 20.81 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange
may aggregate all continuing connected transactions with a connected
person. Under Rule 20.80 of the GEM Listing Rules, in determining
whether to aggregate a series of connected transactions, the Stock
Exchange will consider, among others, whether the transactions were
entered into by an issuer’'s group with the same party, or parties who
were connected with one another. In light of Rules 20.80 and 20.81 of
the GEM Listing Rules, the Aggregated Non-Exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions have been aggregated given that the counterparties to
the Aggregated Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions are

connected with one another and the transactions are all expense in nature.
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Details of the Aggregated Non-Exempt Continuing Connected AHftENEREZHEBETINFEUT ¢
Transactions are as follows:
Transaction
amount during Annual cap for the
the year ended year ended
Name of connected parties BEALH®E Nature of transactions REME 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
B Z201456H300 8 Z201456A30H
LEEXRBEE LFEFELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
1. Pure Project Limited Pure Project  Expense paid/payable for RHREMESH 450 450
Limited lease of a property e E B
2. Chili Chili Expense paid/payable MR ETEEK 1,205 3,500
for provision of film BERBEM
advertising and promotion e &R
services
3. Pegasus Laboratory REED Expense paid/payable FREEZIEM 634 6,600
for provision of film HENRSER
processing services ERER
4. Pegasus Ying Lian RERH Expense paid/payable for HRERIRERS 227 240
agency services Bit /R EA
5. Hangzhou Pegasus PN Expense paid/payable for RETRERE 151 160
agency services Bit/ R E R
Total &&t 2,667 10,950
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Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors:

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Confirmation of auditor of the Company:

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to
report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of Public Float
As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,

the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public
float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Events after the Reporting Period

On 12 September 2014, 50,000,000 new shares of the Company had
been successfully placed at HK$1.26 per share, the net proceeds from
issuance of these new shares were approximately HK$60.0 million.
Further details of the placing arrangement have been set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 August 2014 and 12 September
2014.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Pak Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 September 2014

Report of the Directors
EEEWE

BEWPREE

72014998128 + 50,000,0000% 4 2 7 1 i% 12 5k 1)
REREB1.26TE - BITRSHKROBMSNIE
SRR RBEE00R BT c AR ELHNE T
BENRARR B AE2014F8 7258 K2014F 9712
HE)QM o

BB ED
EE « BIE & BT AT 50 MR OB A B R

£ HEERWFESIEME - AR AR EEKRRASF
RERZEBRERARFZHENRER -

RErE=E
FE
=ER

&8 0 20145F9H18H

REZBIZERAR AT ~ 2013/14 E3 [N



Corporate Governance Report
TEEAWE

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June 2014 save as the deviation
as mentioned in the following section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” in this report.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising

expectations of shareholders and investors.

Compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings in Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made all reasonable enquires, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

Directors adopted by the Company during the year ended 30 June 2014.
Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board set strategies and directions
for the Group's activities with a view to developing its business and
enhancing shareholder value.

42
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Board Composition
The Board comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including the Chairman
(being an executive Director), the other two executive Directors, and
three independent non-executive Directors. An updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions and whether they are independent
non-executive Directors has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 22 to 25 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
corporate and strategic planning experiences that can contribute to
the business of the Group. During the year ended 30 June 2014, the
Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third of the Board
and at least one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board
has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by setting up corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and
acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Mr. Wong (the Chairman and executive Director of the Company) is the
father of Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong (both of executive
Directors of the Company). Save as disclosed above, there is no family
or other material relationship among members of the Board and the

senior management.

Formal service agreements and letters of appointment have been issued
to the executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively setting out the key terms and conditions of their respective
appointments.

The insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Company’s

Directors and senior officers is covered by the existing Directors &
Officers Liability Insurance Policy of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1 of the Code. Under the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should
be separated and would not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for the overall
strategy planning and policy making of the Group. The Chairman also
takes the lead to ensure that the Board works effectively and acts in the
best interest of the Company by encouraging the Directors to actively
participate in the Board’s affairs and promoting a culture of openness
and debate.

The Company has no such position as the CEO and therefore the
daily operation and management of the Company is monitored by the
executive Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no CEO, the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals who would meet from time to time
to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

Responsibilities and Delegation of Functions

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the
management of the Group. The Board reserves for its decision on all
major matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of

directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary (the
"Company Secretary”) and senior management of the Company, with
a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations. Any Director may request independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon reasonable request being made to the Board. The
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to
these officers for the implementation of the Board decisions. The Board
periodically reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to
obtain the Board's approval.

No corporate governance committee has been established by the
Company and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties, which included:

(1) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being
all the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31
October 2012 renewable automatically until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter. To
demonstrate their commitment towards the Group upon the Listing, each
of the executive Director has undertaken not to resign or terminate their
service contracts during the initial fixed term of three years commencing
from 31 October 2012.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all the independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 5 October 2012.
Each letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing on the
date of the letter of appointment and shall continue thereafter subject
to a maximum of three years unless terminated by either party giving at
least one month’s notice in writing.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. According to the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office at each annual general meeting, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three
years. The Directors to retire every year shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.
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Board Meeting, General Meeting and Procedures

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Board convened a total of
eleven board meetings and three general meetings have been held. The
following is the Directors’ attendance record of meetings held by the
Board of the Company:

EX2E2  RRAEREFR

REZE2014F6A30B L FE - EFE A HBHAT—
REEFEZ NZAREXE - L TAEEHEAR
NEIESEMBTERNLERLE

Number of Number of
attendance/ attendance/
number of number of

board meetings general meetings

HERE, HERE,

E=ggE8ne REAEHAE

Mr. Wong Pak Ming R EL e 11/11 2/3
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina mRHX L 10/11 3/3
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond BB A 11/11 3/3
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MEBE LA 10/11 13
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BREBXE 11/11 2/3
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence B RUE S 11/11 3/3

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in advance.
Notice of at least seven days is given for a regular Board meeting. For
other Board and committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are dispatched to all Directors at least three days before
each regular Board meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient
time to review the related documents and be adequately prepared for

the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final versions are open for Directors’ inspection.
The Company’s Articles of Association contains provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any

of their associates have a material interest.
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Continuous Professional Development

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the
duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and
business of the Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Continuing briefings and professional development
to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company had organised a
seminar on the updates of the GEM Listing Rules, SFO and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance for the Directors. The seminar was facilitated by
the Company’s legal advisor with presentation and relevant materials.
The relevant materials were also sent to the Directors who were not
available to attend the seminar for their information. In addition, all
Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group's business,
operations and financial matters to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Directors also
participated in other training activities such as attending seminars and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s businesses or to their duties
and responsibilities as directors of a listed company.

All Directors had provided the Company Secretary with their training
records for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Board Committees

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Board has established
three board committees, namely the audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”), the Remuneration Committee and nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company, with written terms
of reference which are available for viewing on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.
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Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on 5 October 2012 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review
the remuneration, terms of engagement, independency and objectivity of
the external auditor; to review the accounting policy, financial position
and financial reporting procedures of the Company; and to assess
the financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk
management function of the Company and making recommendations

thereof.

The Audit Committee has three members comprising Mr. Lam Kam Tong
(Chairman), Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence. During
the year ended 30 June 2014, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
interim results and report of the Company for the six months ended
31 December 2013 and first and third quarterly results and reports of
the Company for the periods ended 30 September 2013 and 31 March
2014 respectively. Subsequent to 30 June 2014 and up to the date of
this report, all members of the Audit Committee attended a meeting to
review the Group's internal controls for the year ended 30 June 2014.
The Group’s final results for the year ended 30 June 2014 had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. Members of the Audit Committee were of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the GEM Listing Rules and that adequate disclosure have
been made.
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During the year ended 30 June 2014, the attendance of each member W& £2014566830H L FE - EREESFZKEH
of the Audit Committee is contained in the following table: FEEOHEN TR

Number of

attendance/

number of

meetings

HERE

R

Mr. Lam Kam Tong MREBE S A& 5/5

Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BREBEE 5/5

Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence B0 RS 5 A 5/5
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 5 October
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review
of the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually
and to make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become the Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships of the Company and to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. In reviewing and recommending
the appointment of new directors, the Nomination Committee would
seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to
fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or document of the nominee or
candidate will be given to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The Nomination Committee has adopted a process for selection and
appointment of new directors which provides the procedure for
identification of potential candidates, evaluation of the suitability of
the candidate based on his qualifications, skills, knowledge, business
and related experience, commitment, ability to contribute to the Board
process and such qualities and attributes that may be required by the
Board. The Nomination Committee shall review the Board Diversity Policy
established for implementing diversity on the Board periodically.

The Nomination Committee has three member comprising Mr. Lo
Eric Tien-cheuk (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence. During the year ended 30 June 2014, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held to review the structure and composition
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of the Board, the attendance of each member of the Nomination 3 :
Committee is contained in the following table:

Number of
attendance/
number of
meeting
HERE
23¥A
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BREBLE 1”7
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MERE R4 11
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence Gill= bt 11
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 5 October
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review
the terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member
of senior management and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any adjustment thereof; and to review and evaluate the
performance of individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any

discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has three members comprising Mr.
Tang Kai Kui Terence (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Lo Eric
Tien-cheuk. The remuneration of the Directors was determined with
reference to their respective experience, responsibilities with the Group
and general market conditions. During the year ended 30 June 2014,
two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held to review
the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of
the Company, the attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is contained in the following table:
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Number of
attendance/
number of
meetings
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Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence
Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
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Remuneration of Senior Management

The biographical details of senior management of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior

Management” on pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid/payable to senior management of the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2014 fell within the following bands:
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Number of

individuals

AE

Less than HK$1,000,000 {E % 1,000,0007T 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 75#1,000,0007T Z %% 1,500,000 2 [H 1
Total e 3

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year and to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement by the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities
for the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to 58 of this annual report. The Board
also ensures the timely publication of the financial statements. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2014 is set out as follows:

Services rendered

BB ET N &

BE2014F6 A30HLEFE - BN ERAEEZE
EREH S # ST

Paid/payable

BiR R Bt EAEE

HK$’'000

BT T

Statutory audit services SETEZ BRI 995
Non-statutory audit services: IEEEZERT

Other professional services Hih HERK 320

Tax compliance and consulting services 7% 55 s AR 7% 24

Total =Xl 1,339

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control system of the
Company. The Board has developed its systems of internal control and
risk management and is also responsible for reviewing and maintaining
an adequate internal control system to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company. During the year ended 30
June 2014, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chi Ming joined the Group in December 2011 and has been
the Company Secretary since October 2012. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary are set out under the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. The Company
Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 30 June 2014.
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Shareholders’ Rights
Communications with shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include
answering questions through the general meeting, the publication of
annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements and

circulars and the Company’s website at www.pegasusmovie.com.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, there had no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Any general meeting other
than an annual general meeting shall be referred as an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM").

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company’s Articles of Association as amended from time
to time, shareholders may convene an EGM to consider proposals in
accordance with the following provisions:

1. One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings can
deposit a written request to convene an EGM at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong (the “Hong
Kong Office”), for the attention of the Board or the Company
Secretary.

2. The written request must state the name of the shareholders
concerned, their respective shareholdings, the objects of the
meeting, including details of the business(es) and resolutions
proposed to be considered and approved at the meeting, signed
by the shareholders concerned.
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3. The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the shareholders. On the
contrary, if the request has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.

4. If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

5. The notice period to be given to the shareholders in respect of
the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal. Notice
of the EGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered, notice of the EGM shall be arranged to be sent to
the shareholders at least 21 clear days or 10 clear business days
(whichever is longer) before such EGM. Notice of all other EGM
shall be arranged to be sent to the shareholders at least 14 clear
days or 10 clear business days (whichever is longer) before such
EGM.

6. There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the Company's Articles
of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene an EGM following the
procedures set out above in this section.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in respect
of the Company in writing either by email at ir@pegasusmovie.com or
deposited at the Hong Kong Office for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary. The appropriate management member of the
Company will respond to the legitimate enquiry of the shareholders, the
Company's potential investors or analysts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF PEGASUS ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pegasus
Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 135,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR GRS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2014, and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 September 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

M AED N2
%/T\l:l Bfm

K E A & E R

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 4308 It F[E

N\ 7

m

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Revenue e 8 134,788 192,645
Cost of sales $HE BN (75,064) (127,362)
Gross profit E 7 59,724 65,283
Other income and gain N NS 3,532 974
Selling and distribution expenses HEREITHRHX (15,033) (21,794)
Administrative expenses G (22,112) (16,976)
Finance costs A 10 (103) (53)
Other expenses HEAxz - (3,806)
Share of results of an associate FEAGHE & A R ZELE 4,661 -
Profit before tax R A5 A s A 30,669 23,628
Income tax expense FriS i 11 (4,283) (4,484)
Profit for the year R T 12 26,386 19,144
Other comprehensive expense HEtEmAx
Iltem that may be reclassified subsequently to BB B AR 17
profit or loss A9 B
Share of exchange difference of an associate JE(h — B & A Bl 4 =58 (23) =
Profit and total comprehensive income RARER AEG
for the year attributable to owners F A K
of the Company ZEWA RS 26,363 19,144
Earnings per share B & T
Basic (HK cents) EA (B 15 5.6 5.2

REZECERAR AT ~ 2013/14 37 )]



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Are ISR

At 30 June 2014 78201446 A30H

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz BT T BT T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RE REE 16 1,363 1,839
Interest in an associate B N BAE RS 17 58,638 =
Prepayment to an artiste TEDE B IR 18 24,000 30,000
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 19 4,056 -
Deferred tax asset BETIRE E 29 - %
88,057 31,938

Current assets MEEE
Film rights B hRAE 21 25,357 33,241
Film production in progress FUER TR 21 56,002 26,668
Investments in film/drama production BB BBEIEME 22 29,530 35,577
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M e ZRIE 23 35,400 24,274
Prepayment to an artiste TERDE B IR 18 11,000 10,000
Rental deposit HEZRe 20 18,712 =
Tax recoverable EIEE - 35
Pledged bank deposit BHEFRITER 24 30,173 30,055
Bank balances and cash IRITER KRS 25 17,633 29,973
223,807 189,823
Current liabilities REBE

Trade and other payables B 5 N E A e FRIE 26 6,621 7,850
Receipts in advance TEWFRIE 26 9,061 9,251
Amounts due to related companies FE S RS A Rk IE 27 510 3,335
Tax payable eS8 4,368 7,405
20,560 27,841
Net current assets RBEEFE 203,247 161,982
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 291,304 193,920

Capital and reserves BERER #E
Share capital i &N 28 4,800 4,000
Reserves e 286,476 189,920
Total equity g 291,276 193,920

Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liability REBEBE 29 28 -
291,304 193,920

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 135 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 September 2014

and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Pak Ming
=2RER
DIRECTOR
EF

m Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

\\/ \
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

NI 2PN 3
Share Share Other Exchange Warrants Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AREE
BA  BRHEE HtRHEE EXREG RE  REEA a5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT BETr BT B%Tr BAETrx AT B%Tx
(Note)
(Bt #E)
1 July 2012 R201297A1H 10 - - - - 41,081 41,091
Profit and total comprehensive FRmHNREESE
income for the year B - - - - - 19,144 19,144
Arising on Reorganisation Iiiﬁﬁﬁﬁi (10) - 10 - - - -
Issue of shares upon the loan EREREET
capitalisation (note 28) B&tn (FizE28) - 50,000 - - - = 50,000
Issue of shares upon capitalisation A& EITEIT
issue (note 28) HRR D (FizE28) 3,000 (3,000) - - - - -
Issue of new shares (note 28) FITHR (FeE28) 1,000 89,000 - - - - 90,000
Cost of issuing new shares BATHROBA - (6,315) = = = = (6,315)
At 30 June 2013 #2013%F6A30AH 4,000 129,685 10 = = 60,225 193,920
Profit for the year E R A - - - - - 26,386 26,386
Share of exchange difference of  JE{5—FEt & A A)
an associate fEH =% - - - (23) - - (23)
Profit and total comprehensive FREMEEERE
income for the year k] - - - (23) - 26,386 26,363
Issue of new shares (note 28) TR, (fi7E28) 800 71,200 - - - - 72,000
Cost of issuing new shares BT B AR - (1,717) - - - - (1,717)
Issue of warrants (note 28) BATRRER (Fi7E28) - - = - 960 = 960
Cost of issuing warrants BT ANRMERR A - - - - (250) - (250)
At 30 June 2014 7®2014F6 5308 4,800 199,168 10 (23) 710 86,611 291,276
Note:  Other reserve represents the difference between the aggregate nominal value of Mz : EMREEERIBEAREE AEER D TR AR5 FTAIZE

the respective share capital of the companies now comprising the subsidiaries
of the Company over the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued pursuant to the group reorganisation completed on 5 October 2012

RET ([ EM]) AFRIEZREMN2012F10 A58 5TK .2
SEHEH BAKARRSHEBRRMNARSBERAZ
EEEAQRBITHRNDEENZ5E

to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company's shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”).

ARNIERBR AR ~ 2013/14 F3#



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

el emER

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before tax BB AR T 30,669 23,628
Adjustments for: NG BB o RS
Interest expenses FERX 103 53
Interest income IS ON (201) (136)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - REREETE 629 475
Share of results of an associate FE(REE & R B (4,661) =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ZE&E S EFRIK LIRS RE 26,539 24,020
Increase in rental deposit THERSIEN (18,712) =
(Increase) decrease in film rights and B MEREERER (3EMN) F
film production in progress (16,450) 70,837
Decrease (increase) in investments in film/drama production #%& &g/ BiEI&UER D (320) 6,047 (35,577)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N Hofth FE WL IE 3 A0 (11,126) (18,721)
Decrease in amounts due from related companies JE U R B N B R IE R D - 342
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B REMEMAZIE i) (1,229) 4,610
Decrease in receipts in advance ?EH&%XIEW’J\ (190) (76,702)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to related companies T RARE A TIFIE CRi4Y) $E A0 (2,825) 1,633
Net cash used in operations KEFTRIR S 55 (17,946) (29,558)
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁfr S5 (7,359) (6,759)
Income tax refunded REIFTEH 201 2
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBHMARESTE (25,104) (36,315)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Acquisition of an associate U B Bt i N ] (54,000) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BEAHHERSE (4,056) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMHE  BWERRE (153) (1,405)
Placement of pledged bank deposit FREEIPRITER (30,173) (30,055)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit B A RTER 30,055 -
Interest received B IFE 201 136
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBMAREFE (58,126) (31,324)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHIR TS RUIE 72,000 90,000
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRIIER TS 5IE 960 =
Cost of issuing new shares BT KA (1,717) (6,315)
Cost of issuing warrants BATRIRRER A (250) -
Interest paid BEfFE (103) (53)
Repayments of bank borrowings BEBITER - (1,957)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEZDHREREFH 70,890 81,675
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH RERREEEY OBD) EFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,340) 14,036
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FORERAELEEY
OF THE YEAR 29,973 15,937
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, FRESRALEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BRTEBRRES 17,633 29,973

(WAl Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 8 March 2012 and its shares have been listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange since 31 October 2012. The
Company'’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is located at Rooms 1801-2,
Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Honour Grace Limited
(“Honour Grace”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in films and television (“TV") series production,
distribution and licensing of film rights.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.
Reorganisation

Under a group reorganisation exercise on 5 October 2012 (the
“Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Group in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the Companies now comprising the
Group. Details of the Reorganisation were set out in the paragraph
headed “Reorganisation” in Appendix IV to the prospectus dated
9 October 2012 issued by the Company (the “Prospectus”).

The principal steps of the Reorganisation, which involved the

exchange of shares, were as follows:

(i) On 9 December 2011, Green Riches Holdings Limited
(“Green Riches”) was incorporated and one share was
allotted and issued to Honour Grace on 22 December 2011.
Honour Grace was owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong Pak
Ming (“Mr. Wong”), 20% by Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond
and 20% by Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina. (Mr. Wong, Mr.
Wong Chi Woon, Edmond and Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina,
collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

2.

64

Reorganisation (continued)

(ii) On 5 October 2012, Honour Grace, through Green
Riches, acquired from PM Entertainment Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Pegasus Entertainment
Holdings Limited and wholly owned by the Controlling
Shareholders), the entire issued share capital of Pegasus
Motion Pictures Production Limited, Pegasus Motion
Pictures (Hong Kong) Limited, Pegasus Motion Pictures
Distribution Limited and Star Pictures Entertainment
Limited; as consideration for these acquisitions by Honour
Grace and at the direction of PM Entertainment Holdings
Limited, Honour Grace allotted and issued a total of five
new shares, credited as fully paid to Mr. Wong as to three
shares, Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina as to one share and
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond as to one share.

(iii) On 5 October 2012, Honour Grace, through Green Riches,
acquired from the Controlling Shareholders, the entire
issued share capital of Star Pictures Entertainment (Hong
Kong) Limited; as consideration for such acquisition by
Honour Grace, Honour Grace allotted and issued a total
of five new shares, credited as fully paid to Mr. Wong as
to three shares, Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina as to one
share and Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond as to one share.

(iv) On 5 October 2012, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Green Riches from Honour Grace,
in consideration of which the Company allotted and
issued 9,999 new shares to Honour Grace and becomes
the holding company of the Group.

As the Group is controlled by the Controlling Shareholders
before and after the Reorganisation, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared using the principles
of merger accounting as if the group structure under the
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout the year ended
30 June 2013, or since their respective dates of incorporation
or establishment of the relevant companies now comprising the
Group, where these is a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

New and revised standards, interpretation and
amendments applied in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
HKFRS 7 Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 10, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
HKFRS 11 and of Interests in Other Entities:
HKFRS 12 Transition Guidance
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
(as revised in 2011) Joint Ventures
Amendments to Presentation of Items of Other
HKAS 1 Comprehensive Income
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it
deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.
Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int — 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control
such that an investor has control over an investee when (a) it
has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (c)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control
over an investee. The directors assess the application of HKFRS 10
and conclude that the Group has had control over the investee
which are consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
before the application of HKFRS 10. Accordingly, the application
of the adoption of HKFRS 10 has had no material impact on the
amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
application of the adoption of HKFRS 12 has additional disclosure
in these consolidated financial statements (Please see note 36
for details).

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,
and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in
the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

The directors assess the application of HKFRS 13 and conclude
that no additional disclosure is required in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1,

comprehensive income”

the Group's “statement of

is renamed as the “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income”. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations and

amendments issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

Amendments to

Investment Entities’

Accounting for Acquisitions of

HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations®

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 16 of Depreciation and Amortisation®
and HKAS 38

Amendments to

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

HKAS 19 Contributions?

Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities’
Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
HKAS 36 Non-Financial Assets’
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge Accounting’
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle*
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2011 = 2013 Cycle?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

Offsetting Financial Assets and
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Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Available for application the mandatory effective date will be

determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions
° Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and financial position of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods or

services.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been consolidated from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the Controlling
Shareholders’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer ‘s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the Controlling Shareholders’
interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter period,

regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined
at the end of the previous reporting period or when they first

came under common control, whichever is shorter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate of the Group
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided and sales of goods in the normal course of
business, net of discount.

Income from the distribution of own produced films is recognised
when the production is completed, the film has been released
and distributed to the cinema circuit and the amount can be
measured reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit

confirms to the Group its share of box office receipts.

Income from the licensing of the distribution rights over films
is recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such payments
has been established which, subject to the terms of the relevant
agreements, is usually upon delivery of the film negatives to the

customers.
Amounts received for the distribution rights over films before

completion and delivery of production are accounted for as
receipts in advance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from advertising service is recognised upon the provision
of the services. Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income from investment in film/drama production is recognised
when the Group's entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the relevant
agreements.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect

of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Film rights and film production in progress

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). The Group amortised
costs of film rights in the same ratio that current period actual
revenue (numerator) bears to estimated total projected revenue
(denominator). The Group begins amortisation of the capitalised
costs of film rights when a film is released and it begins to

recognise revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total projected
revenue and total production costs of film rights at the end
of each reporting period. If estimates are revised, the Group
adjusts the amount of total projected revenue (denominator)
from the period when such changes in estimates take place and
re-calculated the ratio for amortisation of film rights. The effect
from changes in estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.

Film production in progress is stated at cost less any provision
for impairment losses. Cost includes all costs associated with the
production of films including remuneration for the film director,
casts and production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup and
hairdressing as well as rental of camera and lighting equipment. Film

production in progress is transferred to film rights upon completion.
Joint arrangements
Joint operations

When a group entity undertakes film production activities under
joint venture arrangements (which do not involve the establishment
of a corporate entity) and shares the ownership of the film rights
upon completion of the production with other ventures, such
film rights are classified as joint operation. The Group recognises
its share of the joint operation and its share of liabilities incurred
jointly with other ventures in the consolidated statement of
financial position, classified according to their nature.

The Group recognises the income derived from the joint operation
(in accordance with its revenue recognition policy set out above),
together with its share of any expenses incurred in respect of its
interest in the joint operation in its consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of

rental expense on a straight-line basis.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the

contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of the company (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables

and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including investments in film/drama production, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposit and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of loans and receivables below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-for-maturity

investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of loans and receivables have

been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio,
as well as observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
amounts due to related companies) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group companies
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit of loss

immediately.
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
remeasured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as

an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next twelve months from the end of each reporting period.

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected revenue of the
film rights based on their economic lives in order to ascertain the
amount of amortisation charges for each reporting period. The
appropriateness of the amortisation estimate requires the use
of judgement and assumptions with reference to the prevailing
and future market conditions to estimate total projected revenue
over their economic lives. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions could have a material effect on the amortisation
expenses. The carrying amount of the film rights as at 30 June
2014 is HK$25,357,000 (2013: HK$33,241,000). Details are set

out in note 21.
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88

Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment loss on film rights and film
production in progress

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
film rights and film production in progress with reference
to its intended use and current market environment and its
expectation of future market conditions. Appropriate impairment
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on film rights and film
production in progress is required, the Group takes into
consideration the distribution and license agreements entered
into by the Group and the current market environment to project
cash flows expected to be received through box office receipts
and distribution and licensing income. Impairment is recognised
in the period in which the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount. The carrying amount of film rights as at 30 June
2014 is HK$25,357,000 (2013: HK$33,241,000). The carrying
amount of film production in progress as at 30 June 2014 is
HK$56,002,000 (2013: HK$26,668,000). Details are set out in

note 21.

Estimated impairment loss on investments in film/
drama production

In assessing the recoverability of investments in film/drama
production, the management of the Company assessed the
credibility of the counterparties, the progress of the related film/
drama production and the market condition. The management
of the Company determines the provision for impairment of
investments in film/drama production taking into account the
estimation of future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of investments in film/drama production as
at 30 June 2014 is HK$29,530,000 (2013: HK$35,577,000).
Details are set out in note 22.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment loss in interest in an
associate

Management review the recoverable amounts of the Group’s
associate by reference to the share of present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
investee and the ultimate disposal of the investment. The amount
of the impairment losses in respect of an associate is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of an associate
and the recoverable amount. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The
carrying amount of interest in an associate as at 30 June 2014 is
HK$58,638,000 (2013: nil).

Estimated impairment loss on available-for-sale
investment

In assessing the recoverability of available-for-sale investment,
the management of the Company assessed the credibility of the
counterparty, the progress of the related animation production
and the market condition. The management of the Company
determines the provision for impairment of available-for-sale
investment taking into account the estimation of future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
available-for-sale investment as at 30 June 2014 is HK$4,056,000
(2013: nil). Details are set out in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

7a.

Capital Risk Management 6. EXEERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEBEEEERNEEBRRAEEERAFEL
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising & Wi M R E S AR S E & T R A
the return to the stakeholders through the optimisation of the AR E IR R AR R o N6 B A B g8 SR BE
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains FEEARL AR o
unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash AEBENEAEREEARBIEE ABMGLD
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, RekReFEBYAER (BREREARRE &
comprising share capital and retained profits. F) o
The management of the Company review the capital structure RABIEIREE RN ERGERE - ERRTE
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the management —H5  BREZERERNKAREERERIE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with each MR ER -  REEEENES  A5EKER
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management, XA ~ BITHRAR BT EBRERER
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the BEBTEHEBBERERE -
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
Financial Instruments 7. &®IA
Categories of financial instruments 7a. SRIAMNESR
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
THE GROUP EEHE
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables ER R EWRIE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERELRREEEY) 88,783 119,363
Available-for-sale investment A EIRE 4,056 -
Financial liabilities cRAas
Amortised cost BB 3,899 9,670
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Financial Instruments (continued) 7. @I A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies 7b. £RIEAMREREBERBX
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for- AEEMNTESHTERQFEAIHEERE - &
sale investment, investments in film/drama production, trade BEY/HBERE - ESREMERZE B
and other receivables, pledged bank deposit, bank balances WHRRTER - RITER LB S - BHRHAM
and cash, trade and other payables and amounts due to related ER B REMNERARRE 2EEMIA
companies. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed BRI ERE - ElEASESHIA
in the respective notes. The risks associated with the Group's Rk e ET SRR (BERR LA ERRE)
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and FERREREE SR o 0]k EZE R R
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on HBEEHFN T - EEEEERERZER
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management B - REIR KB B A U EREGE E ik o
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Market risk % R
Currency risk Eim g
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows EREkAeHITANATERARERRE
of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in 5] 7N [P = 585 8 1 O B PTZEE Ak ) [P ©
foreign exchange rates.
The functional currency of all group companies is HK$ except SEFMAKERARININEE KRB - L
for tRREHMEFELBRAF (“IERKE") of which its RABBAGEXEAERAR ([ERXED)
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”). At the end of each BRobh  HINGEEEAARE ([ARE]) - R&
reporting period, the carrying amount of the monetary assets HMEHKR KEKE QRIMNESTENEEE
and liabilities of the group companies, which are denominated EXBEREENT
in foreign currencies, are as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =N BE afE
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Australian Dollar (“AUD") BT ([CRT]) 15 - 15 -
RMB ARE 23,476 - 17,946 6,310
United States Dollar (“USD") ZE7t ([ZEx]) 19,840 56 26,905 1,774
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7b.

92

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of RMB
and USD against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group
does not expect any significant movement in USD/HK$ exchange
rate and this is excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.
No sensitivity analysis for AUD is presented as management
considered the exposure is insignificant. Management will
monitor foreign exchange exposure to mitigate the foreign

currency risk.

At the end of each reporting period, certain group companies,
of which their functional currency is HK$, had amounts due
from JER K which are denominated in RMB. These intra-
group balances are approximately HK$30,533,000 (2013:
HK$10,497,000) as at 30 June 2014.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items including the above intra-group
balances and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where HK$
weaken 5% against RMB. For a 5% strengthening of HK$ against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and the balances below would be negative.
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7b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
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TRT A (&)

cREREEEERBE (&)

misEE (&)

Currency risk (continued) EELRE (&)
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T
Profit or loss (note) B (FIEE) 2,255 457

Note:  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on trade
receivables, amounts due from (to) related companies, bank balances,
other payables and intra-group balances at the end of the respective
reporting period.

The management of the Company considered the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the exposure at the end of each reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances which is arranged at floating rate and fair
value interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposit and

investments in film/drama production.
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher for bank balances,

and all other variables were held constant, the impact to the
Group's profit for the year is as follows:

TRTIA (&)

cHEREEEERBE (&)

MEERE (8)

i SR 1T 45 R AU R = EASOMERL - mATAEH
b B AR AR SRR EF AR RN 20
T

2014 2013

20145 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Increase in profit for the year s A3 0 74 124

No sensitivity analysis for the decrease in interest rate of bank
balances is presented as management of the Group considered
that it is not meaningful to assume a decrease of 50 basis points
lower for the interest rate because the bank balances carried
interest 0.01% to 2.80% (2013: 0.01% to 0.38%) per annum
during the current year.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Company reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds including pledged bank deposit

and bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good reputation.
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7b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on one
of its trade customers which accounted for 43% (2013: 20%) of
its trade receivables as at 30 June 2014. The top customer has
a good repayment history and long-term working relationship
with the Group.

The Group was further exposed to concentration of credit risk
on a production house which accounted for 66% (2013: 54%)
of its investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2014.
The production house is an independent third party, which is
well-known film/drama production house in United States.

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on
prepayment paid to an independent third party in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") for the investment in TV series
production amounted to HK$15,750,000 as at 30 June 2014.
The independent third party is a well-known TV series production
entity in the PRC.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and other sources of
fundings and considers the risk is minimal.

The following tables provide details of the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extend that interest flows are floating rate,
the undisclosed amount is derived from interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.
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7. Financial Instruments (continued) 7. @I A (&)
7b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 7b. Z£EEAMREEBEEREE (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER (8)
THE GROUP REE
Weighted
average Total
effective  On demand or 91 - 365 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0 - 90 days days  Over 1year cash flows amount
mE¥S RERY, AHR
BRA= 0Z90A 91%365H —ENE  ReREAE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% EETR BETT BRI BETR EETR
At 30 June 2014 R201456 430
Trade and other payables E%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%lﬁ - 3,389 - - 3,389 3,389
Amounts due to related companies ENBHARN - 510 - - 510 510
3,899 - - 3,899 3,899
Weighted
average Total
effectie. On demand or 91-365 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0-90 days days Qver 1 year cash flows amount
EFH BEXH AHR
BRI 0£90R 915365R —FRE  REREER HafE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BRI AETT AETT AR AR
At 30 June 2013 201356430
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMNTE - 6,335 - - 6,335 6,335
Amounts due to related companies EREYARZE - 3,335 - - 3,335 3,335
9,670 = = 9,670 9,670
7c.  Fair value 7c¢. AYE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are SREERSHBENATLENIEBAREE
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models BERAREBEIIRBEESRESTMET ©
based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The management of the Company consider that the carrying AARIEBEDR A - RN ARG S B &k
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised MRVENESHEERAENEREEEEE AT
cost in the consolidated statement of financial position EEE

approximate their fair values.
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Revenue Wz
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Film production, distribution and B RME  BITREITHE

licensing income AU A 126,861 190,218
Advertising income BEEMA 5,180 453
Service income Pk 7 U A 2,747 1,974
134,788 192,645

Segment Information

The Group identifies operating segments on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the directors, the chief operating decision makers
("CODM") in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group is principally engaged in film and TV series production,
distribution and licensing of film rights in Hong Kong, the PRC,
South East Asia Region, Europe and the United States of America.
Information reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment focus on the Group's
films and TV series production, distribution and licensing of
film rights as a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated.
Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment —
films and TV series production, distribution and licensing of film
rights and no further analysis of this single segment is presented.

Segment profit represents the gross profit of the Group without
allocation of other income and gain, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs and other
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

As the Group’s segment assets and liabilities are not regularly
provided to the Group’s CODM, the relevant analysis for both
years is not presented.
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9. Segment Information (continued) 9. oHER (&)
Geographical information i & & R
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers by REERBINEE R IR E R BT R IR %
geographical market based on where the film distribution and 1T HE {2 A 7 PT U A PR 7 30 [ 77 35 21 53 B9 9 AT 240
licensing income is derived from is as below: ™
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Hong Kong and Macau B8 KR 29,523 31,883
The PRC =e )5 68,793 129,175
South East Asia Region R & 9,671 12,201
Others Hithip R 26,801 19,386
134,788 192,645
The Group’s non-current assets are located in Hong Kong. REENFERBEELNRES -
Information about major customers EBREXEEFNESR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing RERNEEBHERBTRIE10%HEEFE
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: BRI
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Customer A ZEA - 95,100
Customer B =FB 50,426 -
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11.

Finance Costs

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

10. @ERA

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest on bank overdraft RITE R EE AR 103 18
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARRAFRNBHEEN
repayable within five years HRITIE FEE B A2 - 35
103 53
Income Tax Expense 1. FEHAX
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT
The income tax expense comprises: PSR X B4 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNISH
- current — BP &Y 4,311 4,703
— under (over) provision in prior years —BEFERETE (BEEEE) 4 (537)
4,315 4,166
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") FRESEMRSH ([REMSH]
— current — BPHY 117 417
— overprovision in prior years — BEFEBEEE (276) -
(159) 417
4,156 4,583
Deferred taxation (note 29) RIEFIE (M17E29) 127 (99)
4,283 4,484

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1

January 2008 onwards.

E 75 F 15 5 1% /(8 F Z 604 51 8 2R B i Y
16.5%5t & °

RiEPE AR LB CERERHE ([EEME
Boxl) REEMBTFEERGD - PRMBA
AIRN2008F 1 A1 HEBAEBMFIEF25% ©

REREILER AR AT ~ 2013/14 538 m



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an\

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

11.

100

B PR M et

Income Tax Expense (continued) 11. BHiIExX (8)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

4T A

SRV A

FABIAZ
NHIRR T A i

B M HEAMmE KSR
RIS AR

2014 2013

20145 20134

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Profit before tax B A% Al g A 30,669 23,628

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of LAZRH AT S A A 5 16.5% T H /Y

16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 18 (20134 : 16.5%) 5,060 3,899
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBIA R TS 52

for tax purpose (655) (96)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NAHFFZ OB G E

for tax purpose 919 1,218

Share of results of an associate FE{GEE = AR A (769) =

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERERE (272) (537)

Tax charge for the year FAFIAZ W 4,283 4,484

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 29.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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12.

Profit for the Year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

12. FREF

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Profit for the year has been arrived F R YRR
at after charging: AN EIEERE -
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) B2 (MiFE13) 3,600 4,070
Other staff costs E 8 TR 6,560 4,783
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RN ET B
excluding those of Directors TEBEEEMHK 430 356
Total staff costs B TR ANMEE 10,590 9,209
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z AN & 995 768
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BBk
equipment BETE 629 475
Cost of film rights recognised as an expense R AR A E TR A 75,064 127,362
Minimum lease payments under KEHEETH
operating leases RIEBEERMNRK 1,529 1,354
Listing expenses (included in other expenses) MY (A AEMFHY) - 3,806
and after crediting: Wt AR T IEEFE -
Bank interest income ERITH B U A 201 136
Net exchange gain FE 5 U =55 =8 202 100
Investment income from investments in WEEY /BBISHER
film/drama production FEWA
(included in other income and gain) (B AEM YA R UES) 2,257 -

RERE(LBRAER AT ~ 201314 4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe WIS ERAR AT AL

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

13. Directors’, Chief Executive’'s and 13. EE - THARKEE#ME
Employees’ Emoluments

Directors and the chief executive EERTHER
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and AREEFANENARREZES RITRAZN M
the chief executive of the Company for the years are as follows: B
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other benefit scheme
fees allowances  contributions Total
e RIEF
EZHE REMZR TEIfR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT BETT
For the year ended 30 June 2014 BZ2014F6A30ALEE
Name of director EEUE
Mr. Wong Pak Ming ERABEE - 1,800 - 1,800
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina BhRHET - 780 15 795
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond BIELLE - 630 15 645
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MBEEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRBRE 120 - - 120
Mr. Tang Kai Kui, Terence Rt 120 - - 120
360 3,210 30 3,600
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other benefit scheme
fees allowances Others* contributions Total
e RINER
ek RE 28, Hify* HELGE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
For the year ended 30 June 2013 EZ2013F6A30R LEE
Name of director EEUE
Mr. Wong Pak Ming BRBLE - 1,800 - - 1,800
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina ahHTt - 600 - 15 615
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond ETERAE - 600 800 15 1,415
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MBELE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRERE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Tang Kai Kui, Terence il e 80 - - - 80
240 3,000 800 30 4,070
3 Others represented script writing fee paid to EC Production House in * HMEREB E2013F6A30R LEFE X T FEC
which Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond, a director of the Company, has Production House (ANA RIE B &| T8 L AN Z
controlling interest during the year ended 30 June 2013. NAEEAERER) NREIER -
No emoluments of chief executive disclosed as the Group has no HRAEERE ZE2014F 20136 A30H LE
appointment of chief executive during the year ended 30 June FEIWAREZEITHAS - S ERETHRAH
2014 and 2013. BB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

Directors’, Chief Executive’'s and 13. EZ - TRARKEEME (&)
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
Employees R&
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, the number of ARERERRFALTES EFREINHA
directors and employees were as follows: BANE
2014 2013
201445 20134
Directors £ 3 3
Employees == 2 2
5 5
The remuneration of the directors of the Company are set out ARREEMER EXHT - f T ATHE S
above. The emoluments of the remaining individuals were as UM
follows:
2014 2013
20144F 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other allowances e REMhERG 1,425 1,190
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRE A B MK 15 26
1,440 1,216
The emoluments were within the following band: e FRIEERAZBLT
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,000 278 # 1,500,000 1 =
Less than HK$1,000,000 KR 7 #51,000,0007T 1 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

FN - ASEEHERTAEESIAEZESHTA
T (BEEEREES) XM - ERRSIE
EMAREE SR INARE BRI EE S EH
BEE# (8 - Bl 20145 201356 308 IEF
£ 1TERAB R K AT ) 25 =5 F 4 it 22 LSO A {0 B

S
S

REZECERAR AT ~ 2013/14 37 WK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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B PR M et

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

14.

15.

104

Dividends 14. B2
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June ARARREZE201456 A308 IEF E I ARIK S
2014, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the SEBRNEMABRS - B BHEHERNARIL
reporting period (2013: nil). REFLATMEMARLE (2013¢ DfE) e
Earnings Per Share 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the RRRER ARG T IRERZF TR T &
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BEtE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Earnings 2R
Profit for the year attributable to owners FTEERERZFE
of the Company for the purposes PIN/NIEZ =N
of basic earnings per share JE 1 T 1A 48 A 26,386 19,144
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — =+& & E A2 F|EY
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 3 2E AR N AE 2 5 &L 469,780,822 365,794,114
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume SAEEREERT JIERE AN T RIRREE IR

the exercise of the Company’s warrants because the exercise

price of those warrants was higher than the average market price

of shares for the year ended 30 June 2014.

No diluted earnings per share were presented for the year

ended 30 June 2013 as there were no potential ordinary shares

outstanding.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

16. Y% - BMERRME

Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor Computer
improvements equipment vehicles equipment Total
Bl RER
HEXE R RE ERRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
cosT BA
At 1 July 2012 R®201247H1H 1,069 127 = 463 1,659
Additions NE 22 4 1,301 78 1,405
At 30 June 2013 1201356 H30H 1,091 131 1,301 541 3,064
Additions NE 80 19 - 54 153
At 30 June 2014 201456 A30H 1,17 150 1,301 595 3,217
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 July 2012 201247418 576 63 - 111 750
Provided for the year FREE 215 25 131 104 475
At 30 June 2013 #2013%F6A30R 791 88 131 215 1,225
Provided for the year FREE 226 29 260 114 629
At 30 June 2014 ©201456A30R 1,017 117 391 329 1,854
CARRYING AMOUNTS HREE
At 30 June 2014 R201456H30H 154 33 910 266 1,363
At 30 June 2013 #2013%F6A30R 300 43 1,170 326 1,839

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

20%
20%
20%
20%

Lt - BERREEB DABRERIAT

FRYE

HERE
B RERRE
RE

BRI

)

REZE X LIERABR AR ~ 2013/14 G5}

20%
20%
20%
20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe WIS ERAR AT AL

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

17. Interest in an Associate

17. BEQTIRER

106

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$'000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Cost of unlisted investment in an associate AR A B R ETTIRE A 54,000 =
Share of post-acquisition profits and other WG R EmEmAS

comprehensive expenses 4,638 =

58,638 -

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group had completed
the acquisition of 40% of the issued share capital of Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited (“JDH") at a consideration of HK$54,000,000
on 22 November 2013. The Group held 40% of the entire issued
share capital of JDH and voting power on the board of directors
of JDH and therefore, JDH became an associate of the Group.
JDH is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability and its subsidiaries (collectively known as
“JDH Group”), are principally engaged in comic publication and
owns the intellectual property rights of a database of comic
stories and comic heroes. The management of the Company
anticipates that the Group would make use of the intellectual
property rights of the associate (including but not limited to the
comic stories and comic characters) that the Group consider they
are suitable for reproduction as films.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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17.

Interest in an Associate (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

17.

The details of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2014 are as

follows:

Name of associate

Form of entity

Place of
establishment
and operation

Attributable
interest in
registered capital
held by the Group

BENTER (F

B E A A
mT

Proportion of
voting rights
held by the Group

AlR2014F6 A30B MFEE

Principal activities

RAKERE
A& A A AEEfif
BENAER 157 B REE L FEfb R REEHLLH TEEH
30 June 30 June
6A30H 6A30H
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 2013
Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited liability ~ BVI 40% 40% - Comic publication and owns
Limited (note) the intellectual property
rights of a data base of
comic stories and comic
heroes
EEHERER BB RERAES 40% 40% - BERT UEBRENE
(FaE) BB EIEAEUERREEA)
B
Note:  The Group is able to exercise significant influence over JDH because Wiz : AEEAHELSHITEEATZESD > KIIHR

it has the contractual right to appoint 2 out of 5 directors of the
associate under the Article of Association of the associate. As at 30

June 2014, 1 out of 4 directors of the associate was assigned by the

Group.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associate is set out below and were prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.

RS A RMABMERAA

AR ERE R
6H30H -
£ .

BERARIEAESEIRNZFRE

BR o

R A QR

AIABEEFHHME © K20145F

AEERERERREZERRN—

BHBHERPI

TXEIAEEBERRRBEEEMERELE
ARHNMBEERBE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe WIS ERAR AT AL

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

17. Interest in an Associate (continued)

17. BE L TER (E)

JDH Group FEHEE
2014
20144
HK$’000
BT T
Non-current assets JEMBE E 87,969
Current assets mENE E 22,782
Current liabilities mEEE (15,034)
Net assets BEFRE 95,717
Net assets attributable to the Group REEELEEFE 38,287
Year ended
30 June 2014
BZ20145
6H30HIEFE
HK$'000
BT T
Revenue Wz 34,707
Profit for the year attributable to owner of the associate Bib e N A1 A B (R S s A 11,653
Group's share of profit AN E FE(R R 4,661
Other comprehensive expense for the year ANEEHEMEERS (58)
Group’s share of other comprehensive expense AN B e A Hoth 2T X (23)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to PR E R R B EmER N RS B R A
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised Bt N R m A AR A EEITHAR
in the consolidated financial statements:
HK$’000
BT T
Net assets of JDH Group EEREENEEFE 95,717
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in JDH Group — AREER E L2 5E B A RERE A L7 40%
38,287
Goodwill SRS 20,351
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in JDH Group AEEREEAEERERNREE 58,638
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Prepayment to an Artiste

AR e WIS ERaR T AL

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

18. T EER

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Non-current portion FERNEREE 24,000 30,000
Current portion ENEREE 7 11,000 10,000
35,000 40,000

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group entered into a
contract with an artiste for his participation in nine of the Group's
film productions at a total contract fee of HK$48,000,000 with
a contract term of six years from 2010 to 2016. In prior year,
the contract term was mutually agreed to be extended to eight
years from 2010 to 2018.

The management of the Company anticipates that the artiste
would participate in one to two film productions of the Group
each year and therefore, based on the service fee schedule of
the artiste for each film stated in the contract, an amount of
HK$11,000,000 (2013: HK$10,000,000) was classified as current
assets and the remaining carrying amount of HK$24,000,000
(2013: HK$30,000,000) was classified as non-current assets as
at 30 June 2014.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the artiste had participated
one film production for the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the artiste had not
participated or completed any film production for the Group
due to the availability of the artiste not matched with the films
shooting timetable of the Group in that year.

HZE2010F6A30B ILFE - AEEH—FF
BERESLEAREBMNIELERUET LEH
45 4B R BB 48,000,0007T ¢ A KB A
2010 E2016F REARGF - BEFE - &5
MELERA AL A2010FEE£2018F B HIN
& o

RAREBRERY ZEERESF2HEAEE
W — KM ELENE - Bt - RES QR
HZES2HEGIHEXHNRBERE - 12014
F6H30H © ©% &5 %11,000,0007T (2013
& : 7#10,000,0007T) KBNS EARBE
E - #% FERME{EE%24,000,0007T (20134 :
75 #30,000,0007T) RIS M RIEMEEE ©

HZE2014F6A30HEFE @ Z/BEEREX
EBEHN—EBERRUE o

HE2013F6A30R EFE - ARZBENIE
HEAEERAFENEZHERERL TR
B HEREWRBER TR AT B EREZ
BUE -

AL BR AT ~ 2013/14 53 K0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o

A #%5 Rk M ot

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

19.

20.

110

Available-for-sale Investment

During the year ended 30 June 2014, Pegasus Motion Pictures
Production Limited (“PMPPL”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with an independent third
party, for the investment in an animation production project
held by an entity incorporated in Hong Kong, with an amount of
HK$4,056,000 as capital injection which entitled to 30% profit
sharing in the project upon completion. Based on the terms
of the agreement, PMPPL is entitled to have the profit sharing
from the distribution of animation rights in the PRC based on
the percentage of capital invested into the animation production
project.

It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is not
ascertain that the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that its fair value cannot be measured reliably. In the opinion of
the management of the Company, no impairment was identified
on this investment in animation production project at the end of
the reporting period.

Rental Deposit

During the year ended 30 June 2014, Cinema City (Langham
Place) Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, had
entered into a lease agreement to rent a cinema situated in
Langham Place (“the Lease Premises”), a prime location in
Hong Kong and to take the cinema operation for a term of
ten years commencing on 23 July 2014 and expiring on 22
July 2024 (the “Lease”). Based on the terms of the Lease, the
Company is obliged to pay a deposit in a sum equivalent to the
aggregate of three months’ base rent for the tenth year, three
months’ management charges for the first year, three months’
promotional levy for the first year and one quarter’s government
rates in respect of the Lease Premises. The future operation of
cinema and related operations in the cinema could provide a
platform for the future development of the film distribution
business of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Film Rights and Film Production in Progress

AR e WIS ERaR T AL

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

BUIRAR R ER

Film production

Film rights in progress

- AE BEFER

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT PRI
Cost B
At 1 July 2012 K201267A18 146,400 122,186
Additions* NE ¥ = 56,229
Transfer R 3 151,747 (151,747)
At 30 June 2013 ®2013%6H30H 298,147 26,668
Additions* NE X 233 96,281
Transfer g 66,947 (66,947)
At 30 June 2014 1201456 H30H 365,327 56,002
Amortisation and Impairment B RRE
At 1 July 2012 R2012F7H1H 137,840 -
Charged for the year FRX 127,066 -
At 30 June 2013 1K2013%F6H30H 264,906 -
Charged for the year FAZH 75,064 -
At 30 June 2014 K2014F6A30H 339,970 -
Carrying Amounts BREE
At 30 June 2014 R2014%F6H30H 25,357 56,002
At 30 June 2013 M2013F6H30H 33,241 26,668
3 The additions in film production in progress for the current year N F S #15,018,0007T (20134 : & #&

of HK$15,018,000 (2013: HK$971,000) and the carrying amounts
of HK$15,018,000 (2013: HK$7,997,000) as at 30 June 2014,
represented the Group’s share of film production in progress
relating to film rights which are jointly controlled by the Group and
independent third parties in the PRC and Hong Kong.

971,0007t) MREF B KA E KR2014F6

A308 BRI {E 7 %15,018,0007T (20134 :

75 %67,997,0007T ) © 5 AN £ B FE 4G R AN E

FERESBLE =S EREHNR ERER
VE R RIE

ARNEIERBR AR ~ 2013/14 F3# -
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

22.

112

Investments in Film/Drama Production

22. REEY BBERE

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Investments at amortised cost B B A A
— film (note i) — & (fIF) 19,398 19,398
— TV programme (note ii) —EREnE (M) - 6,150
— animations (note iii) — ghE (FaEiii) 10,132 10,029
29,530 35,577

The amount represents investments in an international and three
PRC production houses for co-financing of the production of film,

TV programme and animations.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has three
(2013: four) agreements with production houses, which are
independent third parties, at a total contract amounts of
HK$29,530,000 (2013: HK$35,577,000). The investments are
governed by the relevant agreements entered into between the
Group and the production houses whereby the Group is entitled
to benefits generated from the distribution of the related film/
TV programme/animations productions.

Notes:

(i) Based on the terms of the agreement signed by Pegasus Motion
Pictures Investment Limited (“PMPIL”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, with TNC Productions Limited (“TNC"”), an amount of
US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,398,000) (2013: US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,398,000) was invested and would be fully
repaid to PMPIL upon the commencement of principal photography
of the film tentatively scheduled to take place in August 2013 or
upon the close of bank financing tentatively scheduled to take place
before November 2013, whichever occurs earlier. In addition, PMPIL
is entitled to a return of 20% of the investment amount upon the
theatrical release of the relevant film in the United States of America
tentatively scheduled to take place in 2014 and a certain percentage
of the profit to be derived from the release of the film worldwide in
any media and in any format. As a security, TNC created a pledge
in favor of PMPIL for another international film to be launched by
TNC, which should be exercisable in the event that the principal
photography of the film did not commence by 30 November 2013 or
if the production of the film was abandoned, PMPIL was entitled to
exercise its right prior to 31 December 2013.
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22.

Investments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in Film/Drama Production

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(i)

(continued)

Pursuant to an announcement of the Company dated 13 September
2013, PMPIL and TNC agreed in writing to extend the date for TNC
to start principal photography of the film to 30 April 2014. As a
result, the date before which PMPIL could exercise its right to seek
full repayment under the agreement has been extended to 31 May
2014. In addition, in the event that the principal photography of the
film does not commence by 30 April 2014 or if the production of the
film is abandoned, PMPIL is entitled to exercise its rights prior to 31
May 2014 to seek full recoupment from another international film as
additional security.

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 28 January
2014 and 29 August 2014, PMPIL and TNC agreed in writing to
further extend the date for TNC to start principal photography and
worldwide theatrical distribution of the film to on or before 30
April 2015 and in the second half of 2016 respectively. Due to the
extension of time, the amount of the agreed fully repayment and the
agreed amount of return to which PMPIL are entitled have also been
increased from 20% to 23%. Save for the amendments have been
made and disclosed above, all the other terms and conditions of the
agreements, including but not limited to a pledge of security that
created by TNC in favour of PMPIL over the rights of the film, have
remained unchanged and continue in full force and effect.

As at 30 June 2014, the film has not yet started its principal
photography.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, based on the terms of the
agreement signed by PMPPL, an amount of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$6,150,000) was invested and will be fully repaid to PMPPL on
or before 21 March 2014. In addition, PMPPL is entitled to a minimum
rate of return at 20% per annum and share of profit generated
from the distribution of the related TV programme based on the
percentage of capital invested into the production of TV programme.
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the amount was fully repaid to
the Group. An investment income of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,260,000) was received by the Group during the year ended 30
June 2014.

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

22. REER HENE (&)

BYaE - (8

)

(if)

(&)

BIEARQTR2013FE9A13REHB A - X
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BB R AR E 17 H 4 5 B AR 1R 17 5 BN Bl 7%
HFERNWB DL - A2014F58318 81—
B o boh - X B R EREWEN20145F4 A
30 ZAIFASK A BEEMEERBE - AIXE
B EBEN2014FE58318 Z a1 £ #
A AEEERBEIMEIRRNS —HEBEER
BECEEIRE -

1R 35 AN A 7 R2014F1 H28H K%201448 A29
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

Investments in Film/Drama Production
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

For the year ended 30 June 2013, based on the terms of two
agreements signed by JtFKF, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, amounts of RMB4,160,000 and RMB3,993,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,117,000 and HK$4,912,000) were invested
and will be fully repaid to 3t7RXfS on 13 May 2014 and 13 June
2014, respectively. In addition, dtZ2 K5 is entitled to a minimum
rate of return at 10% per annum on the principal amount and share
of profit generated from the distribution of the related animation
productions based on the percentage of capital invested into the
production of animation productions. During the year ended 30
June 2014, the principal amount of RMB4,160,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,242,000 was fully repaid to the Group with an investment
income of RMB416,000 (equivalent to HK$509,000) was received
by the Group. For the investment agreement originally fall due on
13 June 2014 with capital investment of RMB3,993,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,912,000), the repayment date was mutually agreed to be
extended to 31 July 2014 and it was fully repaid before the date
of report. An investment income of RMB399,000 (equivalent to
HK$488,000) was received by the Group during the year ended 30
June 2014.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, based on the terms of the
agreement signed by Pegasus Motion Pictures (Hong Kong) Limited
("PMPHKL"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, an amount of
HK$5,100,000 was invested and will be fully repaid to PMPHKL on
27 May 2015. In addition, PMPHKL is entitled to a minimum rate of
return at 15% per annum on the principal amount and share of profit
generated from the distribution of the related animation production
based on the percentage of capital invested into the production of
animation production.

Since the initial investments is expected to be recovered by the
Group within one year, the amount of HK$29,530,000 (2013:
HK$35,577,000) is classified as current assets at 30 June 2014.

The investments in film/drama production contain embedded

derivatives which are not closely related to the host contract. The

debt components of the investments in film/drama production are

measured at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition. At

initial recognition and 30 June 2014, the fair value of embedded

derivatives is considered insignificant.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

Investments in Film/Drama Production 22. REEF HBEIRE (&)
(continued)
The Group’s investments in film/drama production that are not REEVWIHFARBERE BN EEHED
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group REER BEISENT :
entities are as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
usD ETT 19,398 19,398
RMB AR - 6,150
Trade and Other Receivables 23. EZREMERKIE
The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of RIBEHR - NEEE ZERKRIE (KHNEBRR
allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date at the BREE) R ERHNERESITT ¢
end of the reporting periods is as follows:
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables: H 5 e RIE
0 — 30 days 0Z230H 4,725 10,794
31 - 60 days 31260H - 402
61 — 90 days 61%290H 1,436 2,438
91 — 180 days 912180H 555 420
181 - 365 days 1812365H 2,400 3,496
Over 365 days @365 H 1,829 -
10,945 17,550
Other receivables, deposits and HaEWFRIE « e &
prepayments (note 1) TERTFIE (KaET) 2,601 6,724
Other deposits and prepayments for Bl E BN A MRS &
cinema operation (note 2) TarTEaE (Fisk2) 6,104 =
Prepayment for investment in RE R BIBER
TV series production (note 3) AT RIE (M1EE3) 15,750 =
35,400 24,274
FARSUIERARAT ~ 2013/14 F3R [N
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23.

116

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Generally no credit period is granted to the Group’s customers.
Distribution and licensing fee from distributors in Hong Kong, the
PRC and overseas countries are normally settled upon delivery
of film negatives to them. On a case-by-case basis, one to two
months of credit period may be granted to its customers.

These trade receivables relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good repayment history. Included in the
Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$6,220,000 (2013: HK$6,354,000) as
at 30 June 2014 which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over
these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

23.

B REMEWRRE (&)

AEE-RYBAEZPFEOEIAEEN - &
WEE - REKEIERETEHOETRET
BERFAEABERAREINEZIFNE
FEEE AEETREREEAETFEH
—EMEANEEDS -

ZEB HRMGRIERSZ 7 BER T ERGEN
BURFPER AKBEESERFIBEREIE
201496 H30R iR H 4 B & % %6,220,000
76 (20134F : 78%6,354,0007T) M EUKERFX
NikE BB mBEAREEWER L FHRRE
E R - REBWERZSERTB EE
1 an sk BREUE AR Ina& 5 i o

ERBEL RRERNE S ERFENKRER D
#r

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

61 — 90 days 61290H 1,436 2,438
91 - 180 days 91%180H 555 420
181 — 365 days 181%365H 2,400 3,496
Over 365 days HRiAm365H 1,829 -
6,220 6,354

The management of the Company believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there have
not been a significant change in credit risk and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

23. EZREMEWRE (&)

The Group's trade and other receivables that are not denominated AEBEUEAEEERBIEEEEUIINERESE
in the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as HE 5 Rk B EBRIELAT
follows:
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
RMB AR 7,057 11,708
usD = 356 6,192
Notes: B -

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments is prepayment
of HK$503,000 (2013: HK$6,210,000) which the Group paid to an
independent third party in the PRC on behalf of one of the PRC co-
producers of a film production in progress for film production purpose
in which the amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

The amounts represent advance payment of the first monthly base rent
and other deposits and prepayments of the Lease of HK$5,417,000
and deposits paid for renovations of the Lease of HK$687,000.

Amount represents prepayment paid to an independent third party in
the PRC for the investment in TV series production in the PRC in which
the production of TV series is not yet commenced at 30 June 2014.
Based on the supplemental investment agreement, the prepayment
will be fully refunded to the Group if the production of TV series does
not commence on or before the end of October 2014 and therefore,
the amount is classified as current asset at 30 June 2014.

REZE X LIERABR AR ~ 2013/14 G5}
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201446 A30H L FE

24. Pledged Bank Deposit 24. EEARITENX

At 30 June 2014, the amount represents a bank deposit of 201456 H308 - 5% I8 15 A R 17 5 #H &
HK$30,173,000 (2013: HK$30,055,000) pledged to a bank 8 17 17 7% #30,173,0007T (20134 : #& &
to secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group 30,055,0007T) * AE TARKE G ERTH
and carried interest at a fixed rate of 0.80% (2013: 0.45%) BErER - Wik E EFFZE0.80% (20134 :
per annum. The pledged bank deposit will be matured on 23 0.45%) 5t B - ZEEMRITFETH R 20145F
September 2014. 9H23BEH -

The amount is denominated in the functional currency of the ZAREARHEE BRI T EEE -

respective group entity.
25. Bank Balances and Cash 25. RITEBRRES

Bank balances and cash of the Group carry interest at market REBRITESBRIRSIE T HIMISHEGT S

rates which are as follows:

2014 2013

20145 20135

Interest rate per annum EFH = 0.01% to 2.80% 0.01% to 0.38%

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are not denominated AEBEUEESE BRI EEUINEEGHE
in the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as HERITRBRLIET

follows:

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

AUD JBIT 15 15

RMB ARKE 11,387 88

usD eIV 87 1,315

IR} Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Trade and Other Payables/Receipts in 26. BZREENRE FARFKIE

Advance
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Other payables and accruals HAib et 3 R ERT &R 3,621 6,600
Deposits received (note 1) Bliiz® (3E1) 3,000 1,250
6,621 7,850
Receipts in advance (note 2) TEMRIE (M1EE2) 9,061 9,251
Notes: MEeE -
(1) Deposits received represent deposits received from a cinema circuit (1) BERECERBEETELRRBERN —HEXLE
operator in Hong Kong for a film to be theatrical release in Hong KWEABYRIGECHIRS °
Kong.
() Receipts in advance represents the instalments of contribution from (2) TEUGRIEFE MR20145F6 A30H - HEIE S & 5

the PRC co-producers for film production in progress and advances
of distribution and licensing income received from distributors prior
to theatrical release and delivery of film negatives of HK$9,061,000
(2013: HK$9,251,000) as at 30 June 2014.

The Group's trade and other payables that are not denominated
in the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as

AR EEIEL D HEE R R ek
AT B R ITRI M BT RE/TEERFIRATE
WK R RN B IEMIK A 7% %9,061,00070
(20134 : 78%9,251,0007T) °

TARAEBEEER 2 EEEAENSIEE
B 5 MEMENRIENT

follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
RMB AR - 4,151
usD S 56 776

SEEXEBRER AT ~ 2013/14 F35  NNEE]
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27. Amounts Due to Related Companies 27. BB A RRIE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT
PM Motion Pictures Limited BEXEHMBRA 510 3235
Chili Advertising & Promotions Limited Chili Advertising & Promotions
("Chili") Limited ([ Chili]) - 100
510 3,335
Members of the key management of the Group have controlling AEETEEEEKEERZZ@E AR AT
interest over these related companies. feiEss o
The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest- FER A AR RIEAEER - R REREXK
free and repayable on demand. g8 -
The Group’s amounts due to related companies that are not AEENERSEE TR EEBUINERTE
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group R FEN REEE A R IEI T ¢
entities are as follows:
2014 2013
20145 20134F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
usD E - 998
RMB AR - 2,159

UGN Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

28. KA

Number of Share
shares capital
RHEE [N
HK$'000
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FRRE0.01T LM
Authorised: ETE
On 1 July 2012 (note i) 7201267 418 (M&Ei) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital (note ii) VETERRANIE HN (FREEEi) 7,962,000,000 79,620
At 30 June 2013 and 2014 2013 K% 20149F6 A30H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 July 2012 (note i) 201267 418 (KD 1 -
Issued pursuant to Reorganisation (note iii) IRIRE AT (MEEEii) 9,999 =
Issued upon the loan capitalisation (note iv) REREAR TR (FFEEiv) 100 =
Issue of shares upon capitalisation issue RERMEETEITRGD
(note v) (FzEv) 299,989,900 3,000
Issue of new shares (note vi) BATER D (P Evi) 100,000,000 1,000
At 30 June 2013 201366 H30H 400,000,000 4,000
Issue of new shares (note vii) BATE R (B sEvii) 80,000,000 800
At 30 June 2014 R2014%F6H30H 480,000,000 4,800

Notes:

(if)

The Company was incorporated on 8 March 2012 with an authorised
share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with a
par value of HK$0.01 each and one nil-paid subscriber share at par
value of HK$0.01 was issued to Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited. The share was transferred to Mr. Wong on the same day.
On 15 March 2012, the one nil-paid subscriber share was transferred
from Mr. Wong to Honour Grace.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then sole shareholder of
the Company passed on 5 October 2012, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$80,000,000
by the creation of a further 7,962,000,000 ordinary shares with a
nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

(if)

M20124F3A8H * AR A A A E R A B
380,0007T & fit X 37+ A% ZX % /438,000,000
% & A% {8 75 #0.01 T A A% {5 Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) LimitediZE{E5%0.017T
BET—RARABRAREARD - ZROER
BB ®EE TS EE - N20124F38158 » % —
RARBRAABARMBAE L EEETER -

BRI R E W H M —RFEMN20124F10A5H
BANEEAZR  ARAINETERAFEE—
# 1% 5 I T (& 7B #0.017T 1 :%7,962,000,000
f% 3 38 B 15+ FA 7 %5380,0007T 0 = 7
80,000,0007T °

RERE(LBRAER AT ~ 201314 4
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- - E
28. Share Capital (continued) 28. A& (#&)

Notes: (continued) BEE : (88)

(iii) On 5 October 2012, the Company acquired the entire issued share (iii) 2012510850 - MK BWERM 2 HEH
capital of Green Riches from Honour Grace in consideration of which TR - KB AR AR S B AL % & #179,999
the Company allotted and issued 9,999 shares to Honour Grace and BERE 1S - WHER B ERIFEN—RARBBRRR
credited as fully paid at par the one nil-paid subscriber share then held BARNDEZABARIAHE - NIRMDEZE
by Honour Grace. After the share transfer, Green Riches became a % BB ARRRNZERBAR -
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(iv) On 5 October 2012, the directors were authorised to capitalise a (iv) R2012F10A5H  ESRREZTBUALRE
loan due by the Company to Mr. Wong, in an aggregate sum of B %50,000,000 T M & B (FRE ST EMET)
HK$50,000,000 by the allotment and issue of 100 shares to Honour B2 R ETT100AR AR D - AR RIENELEES
Grace (at the direction of Mr. Wong) at an aggregate subscription 5 #50,000,000 THEFRBEFTT A ©
price of HK$50,000,000.

(v) On 31 October 2012, the Company capitalised an amount of (v) 20125108318 » AR RKRHG 5 BRI E
HK$2,999,899 standing to the credit of its share premium account BR & B 152,999,899 L B 7t A AN LA M 48 B Al 3%
to allot and issue 299,989,900 shares credited as fully paid to Honour K3%17299,989,900M& A BRI B A2 KRR ©
Grace.

(vi) On 31 October 2012, the Company issued 100,000,000 shares (vi) 20126 10A318 » XA AIRE EmiRgRE
pursuant to the Listing by way of placing at a price of HK$0.90 per #0.907THI{E £ 3£17100,000,000 8% B 15 °
share.

(vii) On 6 August 2013 and 30 October 2013, the Company issued (vii) 7201348 H6H &2013410A308 * ANARIE
70,000,000 new shares and 10,000,000 new shares, respectively, % %7 A% 15 7 #0.907T B & & o Bl & 17
at a price of HK$0.90 per new share. The aggregate gross proceeds 70,000,0008% #7 A% {7 }10,000,0008% #7 A&
and net proceeds from the issuance of new shares are approximately - BIHBROHNAFTMERBRLERMEG
HK$72,000,000 and HK$70,283,000, respectively. 15 F 5 5 B4 A 7 172,000,0007T & 3 1

70,283,0007T °
iy &

Warrants wIREE

On 13 November 2013, the Company entered into a warrant

placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which

the placing agent agreed to place up to 96,000,000 warrants

conferring rights to subscribe for 96,000,000 warrant shares at

the warrant exercise price of HK$0.93 per warrant shares (subject

to adjustment) to not less than six warrant placees.

At 30 June 2014, the Company had outstanding 96,000,000
warrants to be exercised at any time on or before 11 December

R2013F 11138 * AR A E —ZEENRE
I —RRERRE RS Bt BRERE
RAERRNPRANEBRBEFERMLRARERS

96,000,00017 R ALAERE -

H 5 4 A AT 2 R B

B 1T (B B AR R AR AR 10 75 #50.93 T (7]
T %) 3REE96,000,000 % 2R AE BN ©

HZE2014F6A30H + AR 7 4H96,000,0001)
HARITIE R R EE - B R20165£128118

R Z AIBERF T ATT(E - BEITHE X SRR EE
18 2% 317 4996,000,000A% 5 A% 75 #0.01 7T B9
EEINIE AR o

2016. Exercise in full of such warrants would result in the issue of
approximately 96,000,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each.
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Deferred Tax

The followings are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
by the Group and the movements thereon during the current
and prior years.

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

3 SIE B4 16

REERANFERBEFERANELHEE
ZE(BfE) kEZFHwT :

Accelerated

tax

Tax loss depreciation Total

BRIEEE InERBLIEIT B et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T BT T

At 1 July 2012 M201267418 = = =
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FAFA () Bx

for the year 187 (88) 99

At 30 June 2013 7201346 430H 187 (88) 99
(Charge) credit to profit or loss FA () FtAER

for the year (187) 60 (127)

At 30 June 2014 201456 H30H - (28) (28)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiary from
1 January 2008 onwards. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of the Group's
PRC subsidiary for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised in these consolidated financial statements amounted
to HK$549,000 (2013: HK$869,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has no unused tax losses (2013:
unused tax losses of HK$1,136,000) available for offsetting
against future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been
recognised. The unused tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

BB EMERE - R B AR E20084F 1
R 1B Rt NPT E K& AR SR TE
RE - MASEFEMBRRNRSIKEFE
A /) B 4R = K 3 5 #6549,0007T (20134 ¢
75 #869,0007T) WARMRIBEKANHER - [RE
FE AN B B2 I 8 (o] R RF 22 BB A e ] DA R 5% B
RrERE TSRl TE R ARREE o

201456 4308 » A& B E KR8 A IEE
1B (20134 : R AW B EEEH1,136,000
7o) - AR N E RIEE R IE & E AR R
Bl o REABIER B ER AR -
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30.
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Share-based Payment Transactions
Share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
approved and adopted by the sole shareholder on 5 October
2012 for the primary purpose to grant options to eligible persons
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may,
at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the
directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), employees, advisors
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries who the
Board of Directors of the Company considers, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the
"Participants”).

The total numbers of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 5 October 2012. Options granted during the
life of the Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares. Upon acceptance of the option, the Participants shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
The option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days
from the date of grant.

As at 30 June 2013 and 2014, there were no options granted
under the Scheme by the Company.
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Operating Lease Commitments 31. REHEEHRIE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Minimum lease payments under operating A HEE TEBEENK
leases during the period:
Premises LES 1,529 1,354
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had committed for RIS IR - ANE BRI ] B A & &R
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EHBRESEEENFOIHBERAT
leases which fall due as follows:
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —FR 36,173 1,072
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFA 243,597 771
Over five years hF& 336,962 -
616,732 1,843

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for the
Group's office premises and cinema. Leases are negotiated for a
term of two to ten years.

REHENRERAERERRENERF R
NoEe - HELERASM I +F -
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32.

()

(i)

33.

126

Retirement Benefit Plans
Plans for Hong Kong employees

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the
rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the basic salary
of the relevant employee subject to a specific ceiling of HK$1,250.

Plans for PRC employees

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost of HK$460,000 (2013: HK$386,000) charged to
profit or loss represents contributions paid or payable to the
above schemes by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Acquisition of a Subsidiary

On 16 January 2013, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital in PMPIL from Mr. Wong, a director of the Company, for
cash consideration of HK$1.00.

PMPIL is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong on
8 February 2012 and did not commence business since its
incorporation. At the date of acquisition, the sole asset of PMPIL

represented an amount due from a shareholder of HK$1.00.

The cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary is HK$1.00.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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34. BHAHE

n x5

During the year, the Group entered into the following significant (i) FA - AREEEBEB LA TEARS ¢

transactions with related parties:

Name of related parties Notes  Nature of transaction 2014 2013
)yt M RXHME 2014% 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
PM Motion Pictures Limited (a) Service income 2,747 1,974
AEERHRBERAT FREHA
Pegasus Laboratory (International) Limited (b) Film processing services fee 634 2,211
("Pegasus Laboratory”)
REHED (BIR) BRAR BB E
([REHHREN])
Pure Project Limited @] Rental expense 450 360
Pure Project Limited e
Chili (@) Advertising and promotion services fee 1,205 1,304
Chil EEREEREER
REFBEEE (ER) ERARA () Management fee 227 221
([RE#H])
REFZHZAX (ER) ERAA ERE
(TR )
MMNREFRUEBR A A i Management fee 151 148
(TR L)
MMREZE X ER A ERE
(MR L)
EC Production House @) Script writing fee - 800
EC Production House REIERA
REFEER AR AT ~ 2013/14 F37  [WPNS
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34. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(1) Transactions (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(o)

(9)

The service income was received from PM Motion Pictures Limited
for the Group’s provision of film distribution services, the Controlling
Shareholders collectively have controlling interest over this company.

The film processing services fee was paid to Pegasus Laboratory in
which it is beneficiary owned by a company collectively controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders at 30 June 2013 and 2014.

The rental expenses was paid to Pure Project Limited for the office
premise leased by the Group. Mr. Wong has controlling interests in
Pure Project Limited.

The advertising and promotion services fee was paid to Chili in which
Mr. Lam Sze Ho, Owen, the spouse of Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina,
has controlling interest in Chili for the period from 1 July 2011 to
15 April 2013. From 16 April 2013 onward, Chili was owned by Ms.
Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong.

The management fee was paid to K5 Hf in which a member of
the key management of the Group had controlling interest up to May
2014. From May 2014 onward, Mr. Wong has controlling interest.

The management fee was paid to /X5 in which a member of the
key management of the Group has controlling interest.

The script writing fee was paid to EC Production House in which Mr.
Wong Chi Woon Edmond has controlling interest.

(ii) During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company acquired a
subsidiary, PMPIL, from Mr. Wong at a consideration of HK$1.00.
Details are set out in note 33.
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Notes to the

Related Party Disclosures (continued)
Balances

Details of the amounts due to related companies are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 27.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other key management

Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR M T

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #Z201456 A30H It F[E

34. BHAHE (&)
(n) 4R

BRI R RIS A R FUB M B E R R A B AR
MR M EE27 °

() WETEEEAE

FAREEEERHEME2EE A BB H B

personnel of the Group during the year was as follows: HET
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other allowances e M EAERL 5,411 5,005
Others* H fth > - 800
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RN R ST 25K 96 109
5,507 5,914
& Others represented script writing fee paid to EC Production House in * HAh#E X {f FEC Production House (& F18 5

which Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond, has controlling interest.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

AR ARHEBERERS) WREIER -

EEZREMEIEETEAB ZF B AR R H M
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Statement of Financial Position of the 35. AXQRMBRRE
Company
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary NG NGO S 97,196 97,196
Other receivables HAth FE YR IE 150 87
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE W Ff B A R FR 137,747 47,169
Bank balances RITEEBR 2,924 24,102
238,017 168,554
Liabilities =L
Other payables H A fE {5 RRIE 226 408
Net assets/total assets less current liabilities LEZRE /BEERABAE 237,791 168,146
Capital and reserves EAR R
Share capital (Note 28) & (FffsE28) 4,800 4,000
Share premium and reserves (Note) & B R FEE (M) 232,991 164,146
237,791 168,146
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o 0 agn — b Q) o
Statement of Financial Position of the 35. AAQTMBEMRREK (&)
Company (continued)
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free FEWHTE A R FRIB D EER - £ RIEERE
and repayable on demand. & e
Note: Bt EE
Share Special Warrants Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B EE BERE RRERHE RER -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BETT BT
At 1 July 2012 M201267R1H - = = (7,497) (7,497)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FRABERFANZER B8
expenses for the year - - - (5,238) (5,238)
Arising on Reorganisation RIBEEEITHRG - 47,196 - - 47,196
Issue of shares upon the loan capitalisation REFREARCETRAND 50,000 = = = 50,000
Issue of shares upon the capitalisation issue B BITRG (3,000) - - - (3,000)
Issue of new shares BATEAR D 89,000 = = - 89,000
Cost of issuing new shares BATEIR AR (6,315) = = = (6,315)
At 30 June 2013 201346 A30H 129,685 47,196 - (12,735) 164,146
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FRBERFRNEZHER S BHE
expenses for the year - - - (1,348) (1,348)
Issue of new shares BATHR D 71,200 = - - 71,200
Cost of issuing new shares BATEIRO AR (1,717) - - - (1,717)
Issue of warrants BITRRER - - 960 = 960
Cost of issuing warrants BITRABHEBRA - = (250) = (250)
At 30 June 2014 201446 H30H 199,168 47,196 710 (14,083) 232,991

Special reserve represented the capital contribution from Honour Grace which
is based on the total equity of Green Riches at the date of Reorganisation.

¥R R A B AR I B B AR B B R 2
ETTE -
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36. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company 36. AAGMEXFFE

The Company had the following subsidiaries as at 30 June 2014 2014%2013F6H30H * AR FHEHAR T 51 Hf
and 2013: ESNC I
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Attributable equity Proportion of
establishment/ share capital/ interest held by voting power held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company by the Company Principal activities
B BRTRAZEER ESNGEET LN
WEAREH R/ SERE  RE/ZRER ol 3¢ REBHLA TEXK

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 2014% 20135

Green Riches (Note i) BV US$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
R4 (M) RBRAHE 1E7T 100% 100% 100% 100% REER
PMPPL Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Film production
ABEFSUE &k BT 100%  100%  100%  100% &
PMPHKL Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Film distribution
AEEFEE BE BEIT 100% 100% 100% 100% FEFETEM
Pegasus Motion Pictures BVI Us$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Film distribution
Distribution Limited
AEEVETERLR RRRAHES Er 100% 100% 100% 100% EFBITHM
IEZKE (Note ii) The PRC HK$1,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Service provider of the Group for

facilitating the establishment
and expansion of the Group's
business in the PRC

ERRSE (i) e 781,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100% ARRIEERAEE
REEEBNALE
RS
Star Pictures Entertainment BV Us$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Representing the Group in
Limited entering into actors’ and film
directors’ contracts
ERREBRAR RBERLES (EI 100% 100% 100% 100% REAEEITUEER
BYBEAN
Star Pictures Entertainment  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Representing the Group in
(Hong Kong) Limited entering into actors’ and
production crew’s contracts
EMR% (%) BRAA B 78%10,0007C 100% 100% 100% 100% HEAZEITIRER
BEEEH

IIBPA Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013/14
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Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company 36.

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment/

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

Attributable equity
interest held by

KRB B RFE (&)

Proportion of

voting power held

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company by the Company Principal activities
TMAL,/ EETRAREER NG ] KAARE
WEAR AR R/ BES BA/ZHER (L R REEMNLHI TEER
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013F 20145 20135

PMPIL (Note iii) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Film investment
REBRE (Htkii) B BRI 100% 100% 100% 100% EFRE
Cinema City Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% - Cinema operations

(Note iv)
EYNEEARAR Bk EEIT 100% - 100% - FhEF

(Bt iv)
Cinema City (Langham Place) ~Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100% - 100% - Cinema operations

Limited (Note iv)
BN (BY) BRAR  &E 751%3,000,0007C 100% - 100% - PhERF

(F3zEiv)
Cinema City Distribution Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% - Film distribution

Limited (Note iv)
EYWBTERAA (M) BA BRI 100% - 100% - B¥EOHm
Notes: BiaE -
(i) Except Green Riches, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by the (i) BREWRSN - FTE EAMM B A R A R KB E#E

Company. A -
(ii) It is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. (ii) ZARBNFBEKIRINTBEDE
(iii) The subsidiary was acquired on 16 January 2013. Details are set out (iii) ZHMBARR2013F1 A16AES - FBIR
in note 33. fI5E33 ©

(iv) These subsidiaries are newly set up by the Company during the year (iv) ZEWNBARREZE2014F6A30R8 IEFEA

ended 30 June 2014.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

RABHKIL

RERIEFAEAIERE - X B D BB EEA

REEE
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37.

134

Commitments

At the end of reporting period, the Group had outstanding

commitments as follows:

i

RBERR - DEBEHARBITAELT

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Capital commitments: B AESE
Capital expenditure in respect of renovations of B a]4ERNGEE I IEHREEL
the Lease contracted for but not provided in BENEOEBEERRL
the consolidated financial statements 2,436 -
Capital expenditure in respect of the Lease EREERTANEEEART
authorised but not contracted for 36,998 -

Other commitment

In addition, the Group entered into a contract of investment in
a TV series production with an independent third party in the
PRC for a contractual amount of RMB18,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$23,310,000). As at 30 June 2014, the Group paid
RMB7,500,000 (equivalent to HK$9,450,000) for the investment
in a TV series production and the amount was included in the
film production in progress as the film right which will be jointly
controlled by the Group and the independent third party upon
completion of the TV series production.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Events after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group

entered into the following significant transactions:

(i)

(ii)

By the Company’'s announcement dated 22 August
2014, the Company announced that a Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name was issued by the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 8 July
2014 evidencing the change of the Company’s dual
foreign name from " RERLEIFRER AT " to "REF
BRI B R A F])". The Company had completed the
necessary filing procedures with the Companies Registry
in Hong Kong and received the Certificate of Registration
of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company issued by the Companies Registry in Hong Kong
on 18 August 2014.

On 25 August 2014, the Company entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Company had
conditionally agreed to place a maximum of 50,000,000
new shares to not fewer than six placees at the placing
price of HK$1.26 per share. On 12 September 2014,
50,000,000 placing shares were issued and allotted at
the price of HK$1.26 each.

38.
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BEHREE

REMRE - AEECFL NIERRS ¢

(ii)

RIEAR QT AHA2014F8 22BN A
i RREIEM - FERSAFEME
B R2014F7A8H BB E R A F & H
ZiEfEE  BEARTNESINESE
B[ RKEREERBER AT EiR
[(REZHRXEERERAE] - XA
AIERBEB AR FMEEKAEFEF
4B WR2014F8A18BEERE QA
AMERENETMIETEATNEES
EafEREE -

201458 H258 « AR RFIM— 1A HEE
EE 0 Bt AR BB EEREAR
EEFRBE1 . 26AT D RINEEAR
A B2 & 5 %50,000,0008% 3 B {3 - %
2014597128 * A RARIEREBREK
1.26 TR {E 8 31T & AL #50,000,000%
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Financial Summary

RIGE

Financial Results

RS

For the year ended 30 June

BIZE6H30ALLFE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
20104 20114F 20124 20134 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT A%t AT B¥T
Revenue e == 34,031 71,191 137,186 192,645 134,788
Cost of sales 8H & B A (19,973)  (36,819)  (81,048) (127,362)  (75,064)
Gross profit ES| 14,058 34,372 56,138 65,283 59,724
Other income and gain H AU A R Mz 278 335 2,587 974 3,532
Selling and distribution expenses HE RBITHY (8,113) (9,576) (16,192) (21,794) (15,033)
Administrative expenses THRAX (2,955) (3,824) (7,971) (16,976)  (22,112)
Finance costs BB R (159) (274) (559) (53) (103)
Other expenses H b = = (7,497) (3,806) -
Share of results of an associate i NI E S = - - - 4,661
Profit before tax W 5% B A 3,109 21,033 26,506 23,628 30,669
Income tax expense FrisfiA > (559) (3,460) (5,525) (4,484) (4,283)
Profit for the year F A A 2,550 17,573 20,981 19,144 26,386
Other comprehensive expense HEtbh 2w
Item that may be reclassified FERE BB R
subsequently to profit or loss FA a9 IE H
Share of exchange difference JE A B % A (B 5 =8
of an associate - - = = (23)
Profit and total comprehensive iN/NGIE 7 ¥ =N ()
income for the year attributable F N5 ) &
to owners of the Company ZHKERTE 2,550 17,573 20,981 19,144 26,363
Assets and Liabilities EERAE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
20104 20114F 20124 20134 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT A%t A¥Tr B¥Tr
Total assets BERLRE 78,806 130,372 193,487 221,761 311,864
Total liabilities BEERS (76,279)  (110,262) (152,396)  (27,841)  (20,588)
Equity attributable to owners PAN/NEIEZ 2= DN
of the Company FE b fEes 2,527 20,110 41,091 193,920 291,276
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